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€€ \\/jth honest and straight forward business principles,
close and careful attention to details and ability to

take advantage of favourable opportunities and

circumstances, there is a scope for success.?9

- Jamshetji Tata
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f ;ince its inception, Tata Group has imbibed the policy of honest
commitment to all its business ventures. While evolving as India's
foremost private power company, Tata Power realizes that the essence

of being a leader is to have a powerful vision.

New alliances were sought and powerful future centric initiatives
helped it to consolidate its position as a leading private entity in the
power sector. In the process of creating synergy with its business

partners it also ensured its social commitments were met.

Tata Power’s strength lies in meeting its commitments. With its ability
to manage well in changing environment and stimulate ingenuity in
its employees, Tata Power is poised to be a strong player in the national

power arena.

MISSION

To improve the quality of life.

TATA POWER



FINANCIALS AT A GLANCE
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

[ | Annual Sales this year recorded at 13,616 MUs as against 12,663 MUs in the
previous year.

u Revenues at Rs. 4562.79 crores as compared to Rs. 3930.44 crores in the previous
year.

u Profit After Tax (PAT) for the year 2005-2006 touched Rs. 610.54 crores, growth
of 10.7% over previous year.

u The Strategic Electronics Division registered an operating revenue of Rs. 38.18 crores.

[ ] North Delhi Power Limited has recorded revenues of Rs. 1840.55 crores and
PAT of Rs. 112.53 crores.

u Tata Power's trading subsidiary - Tata Power Trading Company Ltd. (TPTCL)
in its first full year of operation, traded 674 MUs, earning revenue of
Rs. 206.95 crores and PAT of Rs. 3.01 crores.

] During the year, the Company completed the sale of Tata Power Broadband
Company Ltd. to Videsh Sanchar Nigam Ltd. (VSNL) for a consideration of
Rs. 201.97 crores and transfer of Power Systems Division to Tata Projects Limited
for a consideration of Rs. 80.21 crores.

| ICRA, India's leading credit rating agency, has accorded Tata Power’s
Rs. 1,000 crore and Rs. 500 crore Non-Convertible Debenture programmes the
highest “LAAA” rating from the earlier “LAA+” rating. The “LAAA” rating is the
highest credit quality rating assigned by ICRA, and signifies the lowest credit risk

for corporates.




.. committed to OUT perform

T . . .
It is an immutable law in business that words

are words, explanations are explanations,
promises are promises but only
performance is reality.”

- Harold S. Geneen



OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

| Tata Power recorded the highest ever generation of 13746 MUs registering an
increase of 3.5% from last year.

u Hydro stations registered the highest ever generation at 2024 MUs. This was
aided by an exceptionally good water level in Tata Power’s lakes post a good
monsoon season, due to which the Company has been able to generate higher
electricity from its hydro plants, thus optimizing the balance between hydro and
thermal generation and reducing the pressure of rising fuel costs.

| The 120 MW Jojobera project was successfully commissioned in a record time of
23 months.

] Highest ever generation achieved at Jojobera thermal power plant at 2375 MUs.

] Maharashtra was also affected on several occasions with severe break downs

during the year due to Grid disturbances. Tata Power successfully operated its
islanding protection system, thus maintaining power supply to Mumbai.

| During the unprecedented flood crisis in Mumbai post July 26 record rainfall,
Tata Power’s units at Trombay operated at full capacity to keep Mumbai powered.
Tata Power extended its full support to its consumers in Mumbai including other
utilities.

u The indigenous design and development activity for PINAKA (Multi-barrel Rocket
Launcher) finally culminated in Strategic Electronics Division (SED) bagging a
Rs. 172.4 crores production Order from the Ministry of Defence (MoD). This is for
the first time that the MoD, Government of India, has chosen private sector companies
to participate in the production of a major Weapons System. SED also concluded
negotiations for the supply of multiple Advanced Air Defence Systems to be installed
and commissioned in a three year span.

] The Bareilly - Mandola portion of the prestigious Tala Transmission Project, was
completed three months ahead of its scheduled completion in June 2006. The
project, executed by Powerlinks Transmission Limited (a 51%: 49% joint venture
between The Tata Power Company Ltd. and Power Grid Corporaton of India Ltd.)
represents India’s first inter-state transmission project with public-private partnership,
since the enactment of the Electricity Act and paves the way for similar successful
partnerships in this sector.

| The Company’s distribution joint venture North Delhi Power Limited (NDPL)
brought down its Aggregated Technical and Commercial Losses (AT&C) to 28.4%
against the regulatory target of 35.35%. NDPL has thus been able to bring down
the losses by 25% (from 53.4% to 28.4%) in a period of only 3 years and 9 months
as against a target of reducing losses by 17% in a span of 5 years. This has resulted
in overachieved revenue of Rs. 170 crores during the FY 06 and Rs. 168 crores
during the previous year, enabling NDPL to pass on the benefit of over achievement
to the consumers as per the agreement.
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Energy and persistence conquer all things.”

- Benjamin Franklin
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NEW INITIATIVES

Company has drawn up significant and aggressive growth plans to augment generation
capacity.

Tata Power is implementing a 250 MW coal based plant at Trombay, to meet
Mumbai’s future power requirement. The project has received all important
clearances and project site development activities are in progress. The project is
scheduled to be commissioned in next 28 months.

The Company is in the process of installing 100 MW low capital cost Diesel
Generating Sets, which have a short commissioning period of 10-12 months, as
an interim arrangement to meet the additional requirements of the Mumbai Licence
Area.

The Company is setting up a 1000 MW imported coal based coastal power plant
in Maharashtra to meet the long-term power requirement of Mumbai and Maharashtra.

The Company has completed the acquisition of 74% equity stake in Maithon
Power Limited (MPL) from Damodar Valley Corporation for implementing the
1000 MW Maithon Right Bank Thermal Power Project which is targeted for
commissioning in year 2010.

The Company is setting up a 120 MW Captive Plant for Tata Steel in Jamshedpur,
based on utilizing the waste gases from the steel making process. It is also in
discussions with Tata Steel for setting up the captive power plants for their expansion
projects in various States in India such as Chattisgarh, Orissa and Jharkhand.

The Company has submitted its Expression of Interest to Government of India to
bid for four Ultra Mega Power Projects, one each in Gujarat, Madhya Pradesh,
Maharashtra and Karnataka. Consequently, the Company has received the Request
for Qualification documents for the Sasan project in Madhya Pradesh and the
Mundra project in Gujarat. The Company will be participating in the bidding process
for these projects.

International Initiatives : Bangladesh - Consequent to the Expression of Interest
by the Company with the Board of Investment, Bangladesh, along with two other
Tata Group Companies viz. Tata Steel and Tata Chemicals, a joint proposal has
been submitted for the consideration of the Bangladesh Government.

South Africa - The Company, along with its local partners has been pre-qualified
and has been invited to participate in the bidding process for a 290-380 MW Open
Cycle Gas Turbine Peaking IPP project in South Africa.

Captive Coal Blocks : The Company’s applications for allotment of captive coal
blocks in Jharkhand, Orissa and Andhra Pradesh are awaiting approval from the
Government of India.




... committed to CaAl'e

No success... is worthwhile unless it serves
the needs or interests of the country
and its people.”?

- J.R.D. Tata



SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES

SOCIAL

During the unprecedented flood crisis in Mumbai post July 26, Tata Power
alongwith Sir Dorabji Tata Trust, BMC, TISS, Somaiyya College and Nirmala Niketan
spearheaded the relief operation extending to over 35,000 families in Kurla,
15,000 families in Chembur and 16,000 families in Mumbra over a span of 15
days. Relief work involved providing medical help, initial survival kits, chlorine
liquid and tablets for water purification, food grains, information literature and Oral
Rehydration to the families.

Tata Power in association with the Confederation of Indian Industries (CII) has kick-
started a drive to educate and motivate the consumers to conserve energy
which has evoked a good response. The campaign aims to seek the involvement
of every individual and inspire the spirit of energy conservation in every Mumbaikar.

Tata Power’s projects for community development included infrastructure for
primary education such as construction and repairs of schools, teachers’ quarters,
asphalting of roads, construction of bus stops, donation of computers and ceiling
fans.

The Company contributed 10% of the total cost of Rs. 40 lakhs for Solar
electrification in Udhewdi near Lonavla which is working satisfactorily for over
1 year. Solar street lights were also donated at villages near Jojobera. Village youth
have been trained to maintain the Unit.

The Company extended health care through 10 permanent centers and 35 medical
camps to over 42000 villagers free of cost. Tata Power also focused on dental
check ups, family planning, cataract and lens implantation and polio immunization.
Thousand of villagers including children from rural schools availed and benefited
from such camps.

The Company continues to impart training in tailoring, computers, horticulture,
floriculture, organic farming, nursing etc and reached out to youth and farmers
in rural areas. The programmes are arranged based on the local training needs.

Utkarsha-the community development centre at Somwadi is responsible for
creating awareness about their rights and were successful in strengthening the
public distribution system, distribution of identity cards for senior citizens and caste
certificates through Tehsildar’s office.

ENVIRONMENT

Over 9.90 saplings were planted across different locations in hydro catchment
in Maval and Mulshi area, Jojobera, Belgaum and other locations. The areas have
turned green and picturesque and attract several species of birds and animals.

The Company’s focus on Mahseer breeding and conservation led to collection
of 3.90 lakhs of Mahseer eggs and production of 2.4 lakhs of fry/semi fingerlings.
Over 1 lakh Mahseer semi fingerlings were sent to various States for Mahseer
Conservation programme.
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AWARDS & RECOGNITION

[ ] “Golden Peacock Environment Award” for the year 2006 for Jojobera Division,
Jamshedpur.

[ ] “CIl EXIM Bank Award 2005* Certificate for Strong Commitment to
Excel.

[ | “Energy Efficient Unit Award” at the National Award for Excellence in Energy

Management 2005 for T&D divisions conducted by CIl.

[ ] “Rajiv Gandhi National Quality Award 2005 for Jojobera Division.

[ ] “Golden Peacock Special Commendation Certificate* for the year 2005 for
Jojobera Division for Environment Management.

[ ] “Gold Shield by ICAI* for excellence in financial reporting in 2005.
[ ] “Greentech Safety Award - Platinum* to Jojobera Thermal Power Plant, Jharkhand
in 2005.
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The Tata Power Company Limited

Directors’ Report

TO THE MEMBERS,

The Directors are pleased to present their Eighty-seventh annual report on the business and operations of the Company and
the statement of accounts for the year ended 31 March, 2006.

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS

FY 2006 FY 2005
(Rupees (Rupees
crores) crores)
(@)  Net Sales / Income from other OPErations ............ccccveveeeiiiiiiiiieeee e 4562.79 3930.44
(b)  Operating EXPENGITUIE ......coveiieiiiiie ettt et e e 3727.33 2977.72
(c) OPEratiNg Profit.......cooiiiiiiiiie e 835.46 952.72
(d)  Add: OTNET INCOME ...ttt e s 325.61 387.13
()  Less: Interest and FINANCE CRAIQES .....evvvvviviiiiiiiiieieeeee e 165.28 191.44
) Profit before Depreciation, Provision for Contingencies and TaX ..........cccocevvvevreeeninns 995.79 1148.41
(o) I N S B =T o (=T - LA o o RO PPPTRR 278.34 359.62
(h)  (Add)/Less: Provision for CONtINGENCIES ........ccoiiiiieiiiiie it (30.00) 30.00
() PrOTIt DEFOIE TAX ...eeiiiiiieiie e 747.45 758.79
() Less: Provision for taxes (including provision for deferred tax and fringe benefit tax) .... 136.91 207.43
(K)  NEtProfit after TaX ......coeieii it e e e e naaae e e 610.54 551.36
) Less/(Add): Statutory apPropriatioNS ...........eeiueeeeiriureeeriiee et e e e e 35.29 (3.73)
(M) DIstributable PrOTits .......ocuiiiiiiie e 575.25 555.09
(n)  Add: Balance brought forward from the previous year ............ccccceevvveeiniieeniineenninn 1432.83 1197.64
(o) TN = 7= 1 =1 o (o1 S PRSPPI 2008.08 1752.73

which the Directors have appropriated as under to :
() Proposed DIVIAENd..........iiiiie e et et e 168.41 148.60
(i)  Additional Income-tax on DIVIAENd ............coeiiiiiiiiiiieiiee e 23.52 21.30
(I1)  GENEIAl RESEIVE ...ttt 150.00 150.00
TOTAL ettt ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e naaaaaa 341.93 319.90
Leaving @ DAlanCe OF .........ooiiiiiiii i 1666.15 1432.83

to be carried forward

14
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2. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

During the year, Operating Revenue increased by 16% to Rs. 4562.79 crores from Rs. 3930.44 crores in the previous year.
Profit after tax registered an increase of 11% to Rs. 610.54 crores as against Rs. 551.36 crores in the previous year. However,
the Operating Profit was lower at Rs. 835.46 crores as against Rs. 952.72 crores for the previous year and Profit before tax
was also lower at Rs. 747.45 crores as against Rs. 758.79 crores in the previous year. Basic Earnings per Share on Profit after
tax showed an increase of 11% to Rs. 30.82 as against Rs. 27.83 in the previous year.

The increase in Operating Revenue from Power Supply is due to higher volume sold coupled with higher recoverable fuel and
power purchase costs, recognised as revenue in Licence Area and commissioning of Jojobera Unit 4.

The drop in Operating Profit in Licence Area is due to revenue reduction consequent to adjustments for
FY 05 and FY 06 of the surplus Clear Profit earned in excess of the Reasonable Return permitted.

Some significant items relating to the financial results are reported hereunder:

The Company’s debt paper continues to be highly rated by CRISIL and ICRA. CRISIL reaffirmed the highest credit rating of
AAA for the Company’s non-convertible debenture program. ICRA upgraded its rating to LAAA from LAA+. The Company’s
international credit rating from Standard & Poor’s and Moody’s remains limited to the sovereign rating.

The consolidated statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Accounting Standard 21 on
Consolidated Financial Statements, Accounting Standard 23 on Accounting of Investments in Associates and Accounting
Standard 27 on Financial Reporting of Interests in Joint Ventures, issued by the Council of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

3. DIVIDEND

Your Directors are pleased to recommend for the approval of the shareholders, a dividend of 85% (Rs. 8.50 per share)
(FY 05 total dividend Rs. 7.50 per share).

4. POWER BUSINESS
4.1. Operational Highlights

The Company generated a total of 13746 Million Units (MUs) of power from all its power plants during the year as
compared to 13283 MUs in the previous year. This is higher than the previous high in FY 05.

During the unprecedented flood crisis in Mumbai post July 26, 2005 record rainfall, the Company’s thermal units at
Trombay operated at full capacity to keep Mumbai powered. The Company extended its full support to its consumers in
Mumbai including other utilities.

The Company was awarded a certificate for “Strong Commitment to Excel Award, 2005 by CII-EXIM Bank.

4.2. Mumbai Power Business
4.2.1. Thermal Power Station — Trombay

Trombay Thermal Power Station recorded a generation of 9185 MUs during the current year as compared to 9511 MUs
generated in the previous year. The generation at Trombay was backed down to accommodate higher generation at the
hydro stations on account of the excellent monsoon during the year. The capital overhaul of 500 MW Unit 5 was completed
in a record time of 23 days.

The construction of the Captive Coal Berth at Trombay is progressing as per schedule. The civil work is expected to be
completed before the monsoons and installation of the mechanical items will begin thereafter. The Berth will improve coal

15
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4.2.2.

4.2.3.

4.2.4.

4.2.5.

4.3.

4.3.1.

supply logistics to the Thermal Power Plant, as coal can be directly unloaded at the Berth, instead of the current circuitous
route involving road and rail transport in addition to shipping and barging.

Hydro Power Plants — Bhira, Bhivpuri and Khopoli

The three hydro power plants collectively generated 2024 MUs during the year as compared to 1439 MUs in the previous
year, an increase of 41%. This is the highest ever generation by the Hydro plants with the previous high being 1636 MUs
in 1992.

This year has been significant with the hydro lakes receiving the second highest total inflow of 2331 million cubic metres
(MCM), the highest being 2350 MCM in 1927. Maximising hydro generation during the monsoons helped in minimising
floods and preventing damage to property in Lonavla, Maval and Mulshi areas.

The Company continued its efforts of water augmentation to the lakes. The Walwandi Scheme has been completed during
the year.

Wind Power

The 17 MW wind farm at Supa near Ahmednagar, Maharashtra generated 27 MUs during the year as against 29 MUs
generated in the previous year.

Mumbai Transmission and Distribution

During the year, 15 consumer sub-stations, 73 circuit km (ckt.km) of High Tension /Low Tension cable network and
3 ckt. km of Transmission lines were added.

There was an all round improvement in the operational parameters of the Transmission and Distribution system with
increased availability of Receiving Station equipment, Overhead lines and Underground Cables. The Distribution Automation
System for consumer sub-stations was commissioned for consumers in the Bandra-Kurla Complex area. A Customer Portal
was launched on the Company’s web site making it possible for residential consumers in the Mumbai Licence Area to pay
their bills online and also view their consumption pattern and payment details.

Power Sales

During the year, the Mumbai Licence Area recorded a sale of 10421 MUs, as against 9583 MUs during the previous year.
In addition, the Company sold its off peak surplus generation of 686 MUs to Maharashtra State Electricity Distribution
Company Limited to meet the growing demand in the rest of Maharashtra and to some states in the Northern
Region. However, to meet the increased demand in the Mumbai Licence Area during peak hours, the Company also
purchased 448 MUs.

The power supply agreement with BEST came up for renewal in August, 2005. The renewed agreement between the
Company and BEST is awaiting Maharashtra Electricity Regulatory Commission’s (MERC) ratification. The power
supply agreement with Reliance Energy Limited (REL) is also under discussion. The Company has entered into a power
supply agreement with Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Limited for supply of 48 MW for its expansion project.

The Company has applied for parallel distribution licences in seven areas of Maharashtra including Pune Urban Zone,
Bhandup Circle, Vashi Circle, Nashik etc.

Captive Power Plant and Independent Power Producer Business
Jojobera

The Jojobera Thermal Power Station recorded generation of 2375 MUs as compared to the previous year generation of
1950 MUs.
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A new industry benchmark was set by way of construction and commissioning of the 120 MW coal-fired Unit 4 at the
Jojobera Power Plant in a record time of 23 months.

During the year, the Jojobera Power Plant received the Rajiv Gandhi National Quality Award.
4.3.2. Belgaum

The 81.3 MW Belgaum Independent Power Producer (IPP) plant generated 135 MUs as against 244 MUs last year due to
lower requirement of Karnataka. This was mainly due to the excellent monsoon in Karnataka. As per agreement, the
purchaser continues to pay for the fixed charges.

4.4. Generation Projects
4.4.1. Mumbai Licence Area Projects
441.1. 250 MW Expansion Project at Trombay
The Company is implementing a 250 MW coal based plant at Trombay, to meet Licence Area’s future power

requirement. The project has received all important clearances and project site development activities are in
progress. The project is scheduled to be commissioned during FY 09.

44.1.2. 100 MW Diesel Generating Sets

To meet the urgent needs of its Licence Area’s demand, the Company is in the process of installing 100 MW low
capital cost Diesel Generating sets, which have a short commissioning period of 10 -12 months.

4.4.1.3. Coastal Project
The Company is actively pursuing setting up an imported coal based 1000 MW power plant in coastal
Maharashtra to meet the long-term power requirements of Maharashtra (including Mumbai). The Government
of Maharashtra (GoM) has been approached for acquisition of land for this project.

4.4.2. Maithon Project

The Company has signed the Shareholders’ Agreement with Damodar Valley Corporation (DVC) and holds 74% equity
stake in Maithon Power Ltd. and the balance 26% is held by DVC.

About 55% of the land has been acquired, while the rest of the land is in the process of being acquired. The project has
received all requisite clearances. Coal linkage has been provided for around 50% of the total requirement while the balance
is being identified by Coal India. The Project has been targeted for commissioning in FY 2010.

4.4.3. Captive Power Plants for Tata Steel Limited

The Company is setting up a 120 MW power plant for Tata Steel Limited (Tata Steel) in Jamshedpur, utilizing the waste gases
from the steel making process. The estimated project cost is Rs. 490 crores and the project period is expected to be 26
months. The Company is in discussions with Tata Steel for setting up Captive Power Plants for their expansion projects in
various states in India such as Chhattisgarh, Orissa and Jharkhand.

4.44. Ultra Mega Power Projects

The Government of India (Gol) has announced the implementation of several Ultra Mega Power Projects through an
International Competitive Bidding process. The Company has submitted its Expression of Interest for four Ultra Mega
Power Projects, one each in Gujarat, Madhya Pradesh, Maharashtra and Karnataka. Consequently, the Company has
received the Request for Qualification documents for the Sasan Project in Madhya Pradesh and the Mundra Project in
Gujarat. The Company will be participating in the bidding process for these projects.
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4.4.5.

4.5,
4.5.1.

4.5.2.

4.6.

4.7.
4.7.1.

4.8.
4.8.1.

Alaknanda Hydro Project

The Company sold its shareholding in Alaknanda Hydro Power Company Limited having considered it not in alignment
with its current strategy and to focus on other major projects.

Overseas Projects

Bangladesh

Consequent to the Expression of Interest signed on October 13, 2004 by the Company with the Board of Investment,
Bangladesh, along with two other Tata Group companies viz. Tata Steel and Tata Chemicals Limited, a joint final proposal
has been submitted for the consideration of the Bangladesh Government. The Company has proposed to set up a 480 MW
gas based power plant for meeting the requirement of the steel plant to be set up by Tata Steel and 250-300 MW coal
based plant to supply power to the Bangladesh Power Development Board.

South Africa

The Company, along with its local partners, has been pre-qualified and has been invited to participate in the bidding
process for a 290-380 MW Open Cycle Gas Turbine Peaking IPP project in South Africa. The Company will be participating
in this bidding process.

Captive Coal Blocks

The Company’s applications for allotment of captive coal blocks in Jharkand, Orissa and Andhra Pradesh are awaiting
approval from the Gol.

Distribution Business
North Delhi Power Limited

The Company’s distribution joint venture North Delhi Power Limited (NDPL) posted a revenue of Rs. 1840.55 crores, a
growth of 16% as compared to the previous year and net profit of Rs. 112.52 crores as compared to Rs. 56.76 crores in the
previous year. The Aggregated Technical and Commercial (AT&C) losses have been brought down from 53.40% to 28.40%
in a period of 3 years and 9 months, as against the regulatory target of 31.10% by the end of 5 years. This has resulted in
additional revenue of Rs.172.16 crores during the current year as against Rs. 160.96 crores during the previous year,
enabling NDPL to have additional operating profit of Rs. 55.39 crores in the current year as against Rs. 38.06 crores in the
previous year. NDPL also achieved 100% of its regulatory targets for capital expenditure for the fourth consecutive financial
year in succession and has invested about Rs. 1,000 crores since privatisation.

NDPL’s Centre for Efficiency in Power Distribution has become one of the landmark resources for the power sector in India
and has imparted over 13000 mandays of training which includes participants from 18 utilities across the country and
overseas.

NDPL has been awarded a certificate for “Strong Commitement to Excel Award, 2005 by CII-EXIM Bank.

Transmission Projects
Tala Transmission Project
The Tala Transmission Project is being implemented by Powerlinks Transmission Limited, as a joint venture between the

Company and Power Grid Corporation of India Limited (PGCIL). The Bareilly-Mandola portion of the project has been
completed three months ahead of the scheduled project completion date of June, 2006.
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This project involves the construction of 1200 km of 400 kV transmission lines from Siliguri in West Bengal to Delhi region
and was conceptualized to evacuate 1020 MW of power from Bhutan and transmit it to the power deficit states in North
India, while also facilitating the transmission of surplus power from the North-Eastern region.

Powerlinks Transmission Ltd. has implemented the Integrated Management System and has been awarded the ISO 9001:2000,
ISO 14001:2004 and OHSAS (Occupational Health & Safety Assessment Series) 18001:1999 certifications for Quality
System, Environmental Management System and Occupation Health and Safety respectively in September, 2005.

4.8.2. Other Transmission Projects
PGCIL has issued Notice Inviting Tender for strengthening of Transmission Systems through the Independent Power

Transmission Company route. The Company is actively considering participating in these tenders.

4.9. Power Trading

Tata Power Trading Company Limited (TPTCL), in its first full year of operation, traded 675 MUs, earning a revenue of
Rs. 207.76 crores and profit after tax of Rs. 3.18 crores.

TPTCL is now a well recognized power trading company in the country among the eighteen licensed power trading
companies. In FY 05, TPTCL was issued a Category “A” trading licence which restricted TPTCL to trade power up to 100 MUs
per annum. During the current year, the same was upgraded to Category “F”” which entitles TPTCL to trade power without
any quantity restrictions.

5. OTHER BUSINESSES

5.1. Power Systems Division

The Power Systems Division (PSD) recorded a turnover of Rs. 267.41 crores in the current year, an increase of 45% over last
year and was successful in bagging new contracts from PGCIL.

PSD (excluding the Bangladesh projects) has been transferred to Tata Projects Limited for a consideration of Rs. 80.21 crores,
effective 1st January, 2006.

5.2.  Strategic Electronics Division

The Strategic Electronics Division (SED) during the current year registered an operating revenue of Rs. 38.18 crores,
as against Rs. 62.05 crores during the previous year. This was due to a significantly lower ‘Book and Bill’ revenue as a result
of Ministry of Defence (MoD) programs taking longer time than anticipated to fructify into orders.

SED, however, ended the year on a positive note with order bookings in excess of Rs. 200 crores. SED now has the status of
a Prime Contractor with the MoD having received the Pinaka Multi Barrel Rocket Launcher contract in March, 2006. SED also
concluded negotiations for the supply of multiple Advanced Air Defence Systems to be installed and commissioned in a
three year span.

5.3. Broadband Communications Business

During the year, the Company completed the sale of Tata Power Broadband Company Limited to Videsh Sanchar Nigam
Limited for a consideration of Rs. 201.97 crores. This resulted in a profit of Rs. 131.97 crores.
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6.2.

ENERGY CONSERVATION AND ENVIRONMENT PROTECTION
Energy Conservation Initiatives

Some of the energy conservation initiatives taken up by the Company are as follows:

= The Company ensured consistent control in its Auxiliary Power Consumption at all its generating units at Trombay,
Hydros, Jojobera and Belgaum.

e A Public Awareness Campaign on saving power was initiated in Mumbai by the Company in association with
Confederation of Indian Industries. The main objective was to create public awareness regarding the looming power
shortage in Maharashtra and make attitudinal changes towards power saving by inducing self-restraint and educating
the public about simple ways of saving power.

e Transmission and Distribution losses were reduced by switching off under-utilized transformers at Receiving Stations,
optimization of system operations, load balancing on power transformers, cutting out transformers at consumer
sub-stations and savings due to opening of ring network at low loss point.

e Transmission and Distribution divisions of the Company received the “Energy Efficient Unit Award” at the National
Awards for Excellence in Energy Management.

Environment

e The Jojobera Power Station received the Greentech Platinum Award for Environmental Management and Golden
Peacock Commendation for Environment Management.

e During the current year, more than 3000 saplings were planted in and around the Belgaum plant premises.

e Fly Ash utilisation at Jojobera was a record 90%.

TATA BUSINESS EXCELLENCE MODEL

The Company has institutionalised the Tata Business Excellence Model (TBEM) process. Current major improvement
initiatives include mapping the existing business processes for standardization and uniform deployment across the
Company, sustained focus on continuous improvement, creating a team based culture, reduction in Cost of Poor Quality
and knowledge sharing.

TBEM reinforcement is continued through familiarization programmes for officers and workmen. This year, “TBEM Samvad”
an interactive program, conducted by the workmen themselves was rolled out for a wider reach and understanding
amongst employees.

RISK MANAGEMENT

In its second year of implementation, the Risk Management Process consisted of planning, organizing, co-ordinating and
managing of activities undertaken with the intent of providing an environment that minimizes the adverse impact of risk.
The Risk Management Committee reviewed the risks and made appropriate changes in the Risk Plans. The Internal Audit
Plan for the year covers the risk areas identified by the Risk Management Process.

REGULATORY MANAGEMENT

The Appellate Tribunal for Electricity has completed the hearing of the Appeal filed by the Company against MERC’s
Standby Order dated 31st May, 2004. The Order is awaited. However, the Company, as a matter of prudence, has accounted
standby charges for the year ended 31st March, 2005 and 31st March, 2006 on the basis determined by the MERC Order.
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The Appellate Tribunal vide its Order dated 22nd May, 2006 has held that the Company has not been granted licence

to undertake retail distribution of electricity in the area within which REL has been distributing power in retail to
customers directly. The Appellate Tribunal has also held that till 1997, the Company was never engaged in distribution
of power in retail and the conflict has arisen between the parties only after REL set up its own generating plant or
soon thereafter.

The Company is of the view, supported by independent legal opinion, that the Tribunal’s Order can be successfully
challenged. The Company is in the process of filing an appeal.

HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT

During the year, the Company has undertaken a review of its attraction and retention strategies besides undertaking several
initiatives aimed at enhancing employee productivity and talent management. Renewed thrust has been provided to
initiatives to improve aspects such as employee safety, productivity and motivation.

A compensation benchmarking exercise was undertaken to align the current compensation structures to the market. Based
on the findings, the compensation levels and structures have been revamped to stay competitive.

The Company continues its focus on developing its employees and has designed training initiatives to achieve a balance
between the strategic organizational objectives and individual aspirations. Consistent high performers are trained at
reputed institutes in India and abroad for future leadership roles.

Industrial relations continue to be cordial. The Company has signed a four year settlement with the Tata Electric Employees’
Union at its Jojobera unit. The Company has put in place a gradation system, which apart from addressing workers’
aspirations will reinforce productivity.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS / OUTGO

The foreign exchange earnings of the Company during the year under review amounted to Rs. 82.88 crores (previous year
Rs. 74.04 crores), mainly on account of Euro Notes currency swaps, interest earned on FCCB funds parked abroad and
Trading Exports. The foreign exchange outflow during the year was Rs. 647.95 crores (previous year Rs. 655.72 crores),
mainly on account of fuel purchase of Rs. 470.22 crores (previous year Rs. 431.03 crores), repayment of foreign currency
loans with interest thereon, NRI dividends and FCCB Issue expenses of Rs. 129.99 crores (previous year Rs. 175.34 crores)
and purchase of capital equipment, components and spares and other miscellaneous expenses of Rs. 47.74 crores
(previous year Rs. 49.35 crores).

SAFETY

The Company continues to give prime importance to workplace safety, health and ergonomics and bagged the
‘Greentech Safety Gold Award’ for the third successive year. The GoM also conferred a momento and certificate of appreciation
to the Company for constructive contribution made in Electrical Safety.

Trombay Thermal Power Station obtained OHSAS 18001:1999 certifications by TUV Management Services. Khopoli and
Bhira divisions received Safety Awards by National Safety Council, Maharashtra Chapter for the “Lowest Accident Frequency
Rate” and “Developing and implementing effective management systems and procedures and achieving good performance
in Occupational Safety and Health during 2002 to 2004” respectively. Belgaum plant was certified under OHSAS 18000 in
July, 2005. Greentech Safety Platinum Award '06 was conferred to the Jojobera plant by Greentech Foundation
for Safety Management System. Powerlinks Transmission Limited took special initiatives for the Safety and Welfare of
Transmission line workers and conducted safety training programs at various camps on the sites.
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COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

In Licence Area, the Company continued its contribution to building of infrastructure in the areas of education, asphalting
of roads and in drinking and irrigation schemes. The Company also constructed and repaired schools at various locations
in nearby villages in the Hydro areas.

In Jojobera, solar street lights were provided and a Community Hall constructed at Khayerbani village, with facilities for
volley ball, carrom and football.

In the area of health care, medical check ups were organized and medicines provided free at health centres run by the
Company’s Medical Officers. Dental check up camps and AIDS Awareness programmes were also conducted. The Company
participated in National Polio immunization drive. The Company also organised family planning camps.

During the period of heavy monsoons in Mumbai, post July 26, 2005, the Company extended its relief operations for fifteen
days with about 60 employees of the Company. A joint team from Sir Dorabji Trust, Tata Institute of Social Science,
Municipal Corporation of Greater Mumbai and the Company along with volunteers provided relief to more than 35,000
families in the form of food, medicine, ambulance services, medical assistance, family kits, dewatering assistance, cleaning
of nallas and removal of debris, washing and disinfection of eleven schools. Volunteers have worked selflessly during the
relief operation to bring some relief to the victims.

GLOBAL COMPACT COMPLIANCE

The Company has declared its support to the Global Compact Initiative taken up by the United Nations Secretary General
in 2002. The Compact requires businesses to adhere to Ten Principles in the areas of Human Rights, Labour Standards and
Environment. The Company submitted its “Communication on Progress™ in respect of implementation of the Ten Principles

in its business processes.

DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS

Particulars required by the Companies (Disclosure of Particulars in the Report of Board of Directors) Rules, 1988 are given
in the prescribed format as Annexure | to the Directors’ Report.

Particulars of Employees: Information in accordance with the provisions of Section 217 (2A) of the Companies Act, 1956
(the Act), read with the Companies (Particulars of Employees) Rules, 1975, as amended, regarding employees is given in
Annexure |l to the Directors’ Report.

SUBSIDIARIES

On an application made by the Company under Section 212(8) of the Act, the Central Government, vide letter dated
27th April 2006, exempted the Company from attaching a copy of the Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account, Directors’
Report and Auditors’ Report of the subsidiary companies and other documents required to be attached under
Section 212(1) of the Act to the Balance Sheet of the Company. Accordingly, the said documents are not being attached with
the Balance Sheet of the Company. A gist of the financial performance of the subsidiary companies is contained in the
report. The Annual Accounts of the subsidiary companies are open for inspection by any member/investor and the Company
will make available these documents/details upon request by any Member of the Company or to any investor of its
subsidiary companies who may be interested in obtaining the same. Further, the Annual Accounts of the subsidiary
companies will be kept open for inspection by any investor at the Company’s Head Office and that of the subsidiary
company concerned.
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DIRECTORS

Consequent upon the resignation of Mr F A Vandrevala, as Managing Director, the Board constituted a Managing
Committee comprising of Mr R N Tata, Mr Syamal Gupta and Mr A J Engineer to oversee the Company’s operations.

Consequent upon the cessation of his tenure of office, Mr P K Kukde has ceased to be the Executive Director and also a
Director of the Company with effect from the close of business hours on 31st March, 2006. The Board has placed on record
its appreciation of the valuable contribution made to the Company by Mr Kukde.

In accordance with the requirements of the Act and the Articles of Association of the Company, Dr H S Vachha and
Mr R N Tata retire by rotation and are eligible for re-appointment.

AUDITORS

Messrs. A F Ferguson & Co. and Messrs. S B Billimoria & Co., the existing Statutory Auditors are now part of Messrs. Deloitte
Haskins & Sells (DHS) in India. Taking into consideration the above, the Company has decided to appoint DHS as the
Statutory Auditors to audit the Accounts of the Company for FY 07. Messrs. A F Ferguson & Co. and Messrs. S B Billimoria
& Co. have communicated that they are not seeking re-appointment at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The Company
has received a special notice from a shareholder of the Company, in terms of the provisions of the Act, signifying its
intention to propose the appointment of DHS as the Statutory Auditors of Company from the conclusion of the ensuing
Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting. DHS have also expressed their willingness
to act as Auditors of the Company, if appointed, and have further confirmed that the said appointment would be in
conformity with the provisions of Section 224(1B) of the Act.

As per the requirement of the Central Government and pursuant to Section 233B of the Act, the Company carries out an
audit of cost accounts relating to electricity every year. Subject to the approval of the Central Government, the Company has
appointed M/s. N | Mehta & Associates to audit the cost accounts relating to electricity for FY 07.

Members will also be requested to pass a resolution (vide Item No. 10 of the Notice) authorising the Board of Directors
to appoint Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co. as the Branch Auditors of the Bangladesh Branch of the Company and to fix
their remuneration.

Vide the same resolution, members are also requested to authorize the Board of Directors, in consultation with the
Company’s Auditors, to appoint Auditors/Branch Auditors/Accountants for the purpose of auditing the accounts maintained
in respect of other branches of the Company, if any, which may be opened during the year, in India and abroad.

AUDITORS' REPORT

The notes to the Accounts referred to in Auditors’ Report are self explanatory and, therefore, do not call for any further

explanation under Section 217 (3) of the Act.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To comply with conditions of Corporate Governance, pursuant to Clause 49 of the Listing Agreements with the Stock
Exchanges, a Management Discussion and Analysis Statement, Corporate Governance Report and Auditors’ Certificate, are
included in the Annual Report.
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21.  DIRECTORS’ REPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 217(2AA) of the Act, the Directors based on the representations received from the Operating Management,
confirm that:

i) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper
explanation relating to all material departures;

ii) they have, in the selection of the accounting policies, consulted the Statutory Auditors and have applied them consistently
and made judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the Company for that period;

iii) they have taken proper and sufficient care to the best of their knowledge and ability for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

iv) they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.

On behalf of the Board of Directors,

R. N. TATA
Chairman

Mumbai, 29th May, 2006.
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Annexure | to the Directors’ Report

FORM B

Form for disclosure of particulars with respect to technology absorption

Research and Development (R&D)

1.  Specific area in which R&D carried out Design and Development of custom built systems for the

by the Company Strategic Electronics Industry.

2. Benefits derived as a result of the above R&D Indigenous capability leading to Import Substitution and the

associated savings in Foreign Exchange.

3. Future Plan of Action Process Design and concurrent engineering practices for large

scale production.

4.  Expenditure on R&D (in Rs. lakhs)

(@ Capital 519.28
(b) Recurring 53.67
() Total 572.95
Technology absorption, adaptation and innovation
1. Efforts, in brief, made towards Technology 1. Design and development of a servo system controller
absorption, adaptation and innovation cum Man-Machine / External Systems Interface
2. Backup Islanding Scheme at Generating Station
3. State-of-art controller for Electrostatic Precipitator.

2. Benefits derived as a result of the above efforts 1. Universal module that can be adapted for any launcher
application for missile / rocket including activation of
firing sequence.

2. For enhanced system security and reliability
3. Better control and savings in auxiliary power.
3. In case of imported technology (imported during
the last five years reckoned from the beginning of
the financial year), following information may be
furnished :
a) Technology imported None
b) Year of import NA
¢) Has technology been fully absorbed NA
d) If not fully absorbed, areas where this has
not taken place, reasons thereof and future
plans of action NA
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Statement pursuant to Section 217(2A) of the Companies Act, 1956 and the Companies (Particulars of Employees) Rules, 1975

Annexure |l to the Directors’ Report

Sr. Names Age Designation/ Remuneration Qualification Total Date of Last Employment held
No. (Years) Nature of Gross Net Experi- Commence- and Designation
Duties Rs. Rs. ence ment of
(Years)  Employment
1. VANDREVALAFA* 55 MANAGING 6,571,456 6,098,813 B.TECH (HONS), 34 01/11/01 THE TATA IRON & STEEL CO.
DIRECTOR PG DBM LTD. (DY. MANAGING
DIRECTOR - NEW & ALLIED
BUSINESSES)
2. KUKDEPK 62 EXECUTIVE 6,689,032 4,379,175 ME (ELEC) 36 23/01/03 MSEB
DIRECTOR UNIVERSITY OF (TECH. MEMBER T&D)
(OPERATIONS) ROORKEE
3.  RAMAKRISHNANS 57 EXECUTIVE 5,565,854 3,547,186 B.TECH (MECH), 34 01/10/04 TATA TELESERVICES LTD.
DIRECTOR PG DBA IIM - AHD. (MANAGING DIRECTOR)
(FINANCE)
4.  CHARAN AMULYA 57 VICE PRESIDENT 4,184,367 2,632,021 B.E. (MECH), 35 15/10/01 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
(INTERNAL AUDIT PG DBA [IM - AHD. PARK LTD.
AND (FINANCE DIRECTOR)
RISK MGMT)
5. CHAUDHRYRAHUL 45 CHIEF EXECUTIVE 4,518,239 2,794,603 B.E. (ELN), M.TECH. 26 23/08/01 BT WIRELESS
OFFICER (SED) (MANAGEMENT (PROGRAMME DIRECTOR)
SYSTEM)
6. DESHPANDE S D 59 VICE PRESIDENT 3,186,833 2,017,356 B.E., MTECH. 36 14/05/99 NATIONAL THERMAL
(OPERATIONS) POWER CORP. LTD.
(ADDITIONAL GENERAL
MANAGER)
7. BHANDARIMAHESH 45 VICE PRESIDENT 3,941,172 2,499,933 B.COM,, LL.B., 21 09/10/03 TATA CONSULTANCY
(REGULATION) ACA, MSM (USA), SERVICES (EXECUTIVE
CPA (USA) VICE PRESIDENT)
8. SARDANAAK 47 MANAGING 5,187,059 3,383,042 B.E. (ELEC) 25 12/07/02 BSES LIMITED
DIRECTOR (NDPL) UNIVERSITY OF (V.P. HEAD OF CORP.
DELHI, ICWAI, PGDM PLANNING & EPC
BUSINESS GROUP)
9.  WADHWA SUNIL 46 EXECUTIVE 4,004,302 2,535,534 ACSI, ACAI 23 02/08/02 TATA CHEMICALS LIMITED
DIRECTOR (CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER)
(NDPL)
10. SEQUIERARC 46 VICE PRESIDENT 3,325,984 1,997,329 B.Sc., PGD - PM&IR 22 10/06/04 HSBC
(HR) (SENIOR REWARDS
MANAGER)
11. SHROFFBJ 54 COMPANY 2,515,606 1,598,087 B.COM., FCS, 35 05/10/98 THE BOMBAY BURMAH
SECRETARY & ASSOCIATE TRADING CORP. LTD.
SR. GM MEMBER OF THE (COMPANY SECRETARY)

(CORP. AFFAIRS)

INSTITUTE OF INTERNAL

AUDITORS, FLORIDA,USA

* Employed for part of the year

Notes: (1) Gross remuneration comprises salary, allowances, monetary value of perquisites, commission to Directors and the Company’s contribution to Provident and

Superannuation Funds, but excludes provision for retiring gratuity for which separate figures are not available.

Net remuneration is after tax and is exclusive of Company’s Contribution to Provident and Superannuation Funds and monetary value of non cash perquisites.
The nature of employment in all cases is contractual.

None of the employees mentioned above is a relative of any Director of the Company.

SICRC)

On behalf of the Board of Directors,

R. N. TATA
Chairman
Mumbai, 29th May, 2006.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS
Power Sector in India

The Indian power sector is progressing on the policy
and regulation front, consequent to the enactment
of The Electricity Act, 2003. Various policy initiatives
which have taken place are the finalization of National
Electricity Policy, National Tariff Policy, Competitive
bidding guidelines, 100% Rural Electrification Policy,
establishment of National Appellate Tribunal and
institutionalizing effective Central and State level
regulatory mechanisms and unbundling of different
State Electricity Boards. The regulatory mechanism in
the country is also in the process of maturing with the
formulation of new rules and regulations in place of
antiquated rules, by Central and different State
regulators, in line with the spirit of The Electricity
Act, 2003, by balancing interests of different
stakeholders.

Generation

While there is some progress on the policy front, the
overall gap between power supply and demand
continues in the country, with the peak demand shortage
at 12-13% and energy gap at 7-8% resulting in frequent
load shedding. Most major States like Maharashtra,
Gujarat, Madhya Pradesh, Uttar Pradesh, and Punjab
have been facing much higher power shortage in the
range of 20-25%. The Government of India (Gol) has
expressed concern about this power shortage situation
and has launched an ambitious program to augment
the country’s present generation capacity of about
1,24,000 MW by installing an additional 1,00,000 MW
of generation capacity by 2012.

To provide a much needed impetus to this capital
intensive capacity augmentation program, the Gol has
now proposed installation of Ultra Mega Power
Projects, each consisting of 4000 MW of capacity, at
select 5 to 7 locations. These projects would be offered
to interested parties for development on competitive

1.1.2.

1.1.3.

bidding basis, after completion of the necessary
infrastructure work like land acquisition, water supply,
rail and road networks, fuel linkages, power evacuation
as well as obtaining necessary statutory clearances.

This would offer opportunities for capacity addition
to the private sector. The power sector is also likely to
see an increasing level of competition from a
multitude of players, including global companies. This
is expected to change the market dynamics from a
protective environment to a competitive one, although
the pace of change remains uncertain.

Transmission

The Gol has also acknowledged the need for a robust
transmission network to overcome corridor constraints
and to ensure congestion-free flow of power across
the country. The Central Transmission Utility, namely
Power Grid Corporation of India Limited (PGCIL) has
been mandated to enhance the interstate capacity to
30,000 MW. PGCIL proposes to carry out this extensive
activity through the joint venture route with private
parties. It is also proposed that certain identified
transmission networks in the country could be
awarded to interested private sector parties directly.
The Gol has recently finalized guidelines for
encouraging private sector participation and
competitive bidding in this sector.

Distribution and State Electricity Boards

While many State Electricity Boards (SEBs) have been
unbundled and are now operating as separate
Generation, Transmission and Distribution entities,
the expected efficiencies in technical operations and
financial performance are not yet visible. The
Aggregated Technical and Commercial losses continue
to remain at high levels, with the national average
being 36% due to reasons such as lack of law and
order support to curb thefts and general inability of
SEBs to take tough measures. Creditworthiness of
most SEBs remain a concern for private investors. While
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privatization of the distribution sector in Delhi, has
achieved demonstrable improved quality and reliability
of supply as well as services to the end users, similar
efforts in privatization of distribution areas, which
could have improved matters in different States have
not yet been seen. Load shedding continues in many
areas due to lack of adequate generation capacity.
Consumers and industries are, therefore, compelled
to either face the inevitable load shedding or rely upon
sub-optimal solutions such as inverters, DG sets and
captive power plants to meet power shortages.

Rural Electrification

The Gol has launched the Rajiv Gandhi Grameen
Vidyutikaran Yojana — a National Rural Electrification
Programme, which proposes 100% village
electrification and access to electricity to all households
in India in the next 5 years. The Gol has committed
financial resources of about Rs.16000 crores,
distributed over 5 years, for this ambitious target.

Other Developments

Maharashtra has been facing unprecedented power
shortage of about 4000 MW. This has led to a planned
load shedding of up to 12 hours in rural areas and
4-6 hours in other urban areas. The situation is likely
to worsen in the coming years unless new capacity
addition is done.

We are now seeing the revival of the 2184 MW Ratnagiri
Gas and Power Pvt. Ltd. However, the key issue of sourcing
of Liquified Natural Gas (LNG) at affordable prices
remains to be resolved.

Consequent to the notification of guidelines for tariff
based bidding, some States have started using this
route for sourcing their future requirements. Concerns
are, however, expressed regarding the timing and
actual implementation in different States.

OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS

Announcement of the Ultra Mega Power Projects by
the Gol has opened opportunities. The Nuclear Power

3.1

sector is also likely to be opened up for foreign and
private sector participation in the future.

While there are future opportunities for the private
sector and some of the players have announced
their plans, their fructification would largely depend
upon the Gol and the States addressing the basic
issues relating to risk profile of the sector due to
long project development time and capital intensive
nature of sector, slow pace of distribution reforms,
the coal sector’s inability to meet growing demand
of the power sector, inadequate evacuation capacity
of transmission corridors and credit worthiness of
SEBs etc.

The Gol has acknowledged some of these issues
and decided to privatise/allot, yet to be developed,
coal mines to power producers to meet their fuel
requirement. However, delays in opening up
the coal sector for the private sector and lack of
clarity in allotment of captive coal blocks to the
power sector continues to be a cause for concern.
Reforms in distribution and fuel sectors hold the key
to long-term sustenance of investments in the
power sector.

SEGMENT-WISE REVIEW OF THE COMPANY’S
BUSINESS

Profile

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of
generation, transmission and distribution of electricity
with operations in the states of Maharashtra,
Jharkhand and Karnataka. Through its Strategic
Electronics Division, the Company carries out design
and development of defence systems like Multi Rocket
Launcher Systems.

During the current year, the power business
contributed about 94% of the Company’s
revenues. The Mumbai Licence Area operations
contributed about 86% of the power business
revenues.
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Generation, Transmission and Distribution of
Electricity

Mumbai Licence Area

Sales :

The sales in Licence Area were higher at
11107 Million Units (MUs) as against 10376 MUs
during the previous year. Sales from Licence Area
operations to consumers outside Licence Area stood
at 686 MUs as against 793 MUs during the previous
year. Sales to various consumers of the Company in
the current year compared to the previous year are

as under:
2005-06 2004-05

Customer (MUs) % | (MUs) %
BEST 4156 38| 3962 38
REL 3924 35| 3352 32
Railways 765 7 782 8
Others 1576 14 1487 14
Sales in Licence Area| 10421 94| 9583 92
MSEB / MPEB/ TPTCL 686 6 793 8
Total 11107 100| 10376 100

Thermal Generation

Trombay Thermal Power Station generated 9185 MUs
as against 9511MUs during the previous year. Thermal
generation was required to be backed down during
monsoon to accommodate the highest ever recorded
hydro generation due to unprecedented monsoon
this year.

Generation at Trombay is largely dependent on
domestic Low Sulphur Heavy Stock (LSHS) and
imported coal to meet the stringent environmental
requirements. Fluctuations in oil prices have a major
bearing on the Company’s tariff in its Licence Area.
Increase in international crude prices has resulted in a
sharp increase in the cost of LSHS. Gas availability also

3.2.1.3.

3.2.1.4.

remained low during the year. A break up of the fuel
mix is provided below:

(Figures in %) 2005-06 | 2004-05
Fuel mix (based on MUs)

Coal 32 35
QOil 37 38
Gas 13 14
Hydro 18 13
Total 100 100
Fuel mix

(based on Fuel Cost)

Coal 22 31
QOil 73 63
Gas 5 6
Hydro — —
Total 100 100

Hydro Generation

Hydro generating plants of the Company generated
2024 MUs during the year as compared to 1439 MUs
during the previous year. This is the highest ever
generation of hydros, the previous high being 1636
MUs in the year 1992.

Transmission and Distribution

The Company lays strong emphasis on continuous
improvement in the quality of power supply,
closely monitoring its reliability indices.
Commissioning of new sub-stations, enhancing
cable and transmission network have further helped
in improving reliability of power supply to customers.
The Company also launched a Customer Portal
on its web site whereby Licence Area residential
customers can view and pay their bills on-line and
also view their consumption pattern and payment

details.



TATAPOWER

Eighty-seventh annual report 2005-2006
The Tata Power Company Limited

3.2.2.

3.3

3.4
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Captive Power Plants and Independent Power
Plants

Jojobera Power Plants generated 2375 MUs which is
the highest till date, an increase of 22% over the

previous year.

The generation at Belgaum Plant was lower at 135
MUs as against 244 MUs of last year due to lack of
demand on account of excellent monsoon in
Karnataka.

Strategic Electronics Division

Through the Defence Procurement Procedure 2005,
the Ministry of Defence (MoD) has introduced offset
requirements for imported defence equipments.
Strategic Electronics Division (SED) proposes to exploit
this offset window and is targeting export of design
and engineering services to Foreign Prime Defence

contractors.

SED now has the status of a prime contractor with the
MoD, having received the Pinaka Multi Barrel Rocket
Launcher contract in March, 2006. SED also concluded
negotiations for the supply of multiple Advanced Air
Defence Systems to be installed and commissioned in
a three year span. SED ended the year on a positive
note with order bookings in excess of Rs. 200 crores.

Power Systems Division

In view of significant operational synergies with Tata
Projects Limited (TPL), the Company decided to sell
Power Systems Division (excluding the Bangladesh
projects) to TPL at a consideration of Rs. 80.21 crores,
effective 1% January, 2006.

Disputes

There are certain ongoing disputes between
the Company and Reliance Energy Ltd. (REL) in
the Mumbai Licence Area: Sharing of standby charges
case and Interpretation of the Company’s licence
etc. All these matters are going through the
appropriate dispute resolution process through the

Regulatory Commission hearing and legal process as
required.

The Appellate Tribunal for Electricity has completed
the hearing of the Appeal filed by the Company
against the Maharashtra Electricity Regulatory
Commission’s (MERC) Standby Order dated 31st May,
2004. The Order is awaited. However, the Company,
as a matter of prudence, has accounted standby
charges for the year ended 31st March, 2005 and
31st March, 2006 on the basis determined by the
MERC Order.

MERC passed an Order on 3rd July, 2003 holding
that the Company has a right to supply electricity to
all types of consumers in bulk as well as in retail but
retrained the Company from distributing power to
consumers below 1000 KVA and offering new
connections till such time a level playing field was
established.

Both REL and the Company appealed against the
MERC’s Order before the Appellate Tribunal for
Electricity. The Appellate Tribunal vide its Order dated
22nd May, 2006 has set aside the findings of MERC
and has held that the Company has not been granted
licence to undertake retail distribution of electricity in
the area within which REL has been distributing power
in retail to customers directly. The Appellate Tribunal
has also held that till 1997, the Company was never
engaged in distribution of power in retail and the
conflict has arisen between the parties only after REL
set up its own generating plant or soon thereafter.

The Company is of the view, supported by independent
legal opinion, that the Tribunal’s Order can be
successfully challenged. The Company is in the process
of filing an appeal.

COMPANY’S GROWTH PLANS IN THE POWER
SECTOR

The Company has a long-term strategic growth plan,
in order to enable it to capitalise on the opportunities
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being presented and mitigate the inherent risks. The

Company is currently pursuing the development of

several projects to achieve growth. These are:

250 MW Thermal Power Plant at Trombay based
on imported coal and utilising the existing
infrastructure at Trombay. This plant will help in
addressing the power shortage scenario in
Mumbai. The project is scheduled to be
commissioned in FY 09. The Company is also
examining the feasibility of installing further
additional capacity at Trombay.

The Company is in the process of setting up
100 MW Diesel Generating sets, which have a
short commissioning period of 10-12 months,
acting as an interim measure in meeting the deficit
in the Mumbai Licence Area. The project is subject
to receiving necessary regulatory and environment
approvals.

The Company is setting up a 120 MW captive
plant for Tata Steel Limited (Tata Steel) in
Jamshedpur, utilizing the waste gases from the
steel making process. The estimated project cost
is Rs. 490 crores.

The Company is in discussions with Tata Steel
to set up Captive Power Plants to cater to the needs
of their expansion projects at Chhatisgarh
(744 MW), Orissa (1000 MW) and Jharkhand
(1000 MW). As and when Tata Steel firms up its
plans, the Company will enter into Power Purchase
Agreements with Tata Steel for the sale of power
from these units.

The Company proposes to bid for Ultra Mega
Power Projects that meet its strategic interest. These
will be awarded on a tariff based bidding process.
The Gol has envisaged an aggressive timeline for
selection and implementation of these projects.
In the Company’s view, the probability of these
timelines being met would depend on how soon
certain intricate issues such as fuel, payment

security mechanism, power evacuation, etc. are
resolved so as to meet the concerns of investors.

The Company is developing the 1000 MW
Maithon Right Bank Project through a joint
venture with Damodar Valley Corporation (DVC).
The Company has signed the Shareholders’
Agreement with DVC and holds 74% equity stake
in Maithon Power Limited and the balance 26% is
held by DVC. The project has been targeted for
commissioning in FY 2010. The project has tied
up 50% of coal requirement so far and the balance
is being tied up.

The Company is exploring the possibility of setting
up a generation facility to service the load of North
Delhi Power Limited (NDPL), the Company’s
distribution subsidiary in Delhi. While bulk of the
power from the project would be sold to
consumers in Delhi, part of it could be sold to
consumers in neighbouring States such as Punjab,
Haryana and Rajasthan. The project
implementation is subject to tying up various
inputs such as coal, water, land, power evacuation
and tariff being competitive. A project site near
Delhi is under active consideration for setting up
this plant.

An imported coal based 1000 MW Mega Power
Plant on the west coast of India to primarily serve
consumers in Maharashtra (including Mumbai) is
under consideration. The Government of
Maharashtra has been approached for land
acquisition. This project is in the early stages of
development.

Recognizing the need to have its own primary fuel,
the Company has applied for allocation of 12
captive coal blocks in the coal rich states of
Jharkhand, Orissa and Andhra Pradesh. Upon
allotment, the Company plans to establish mega
pit head based power plants, generating cheap
electricity for transmission to the State markets of
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its choice. The allocation of captive coal blocks
and the timeframe cannot be ascertained with
surety as clarity on the process to be followed for
such allocations is awaited.

e The Company is also considering generation
projects in other countries like Bangladesh and
South Africa. These are under various stages of
evaluation, bidding or development. These
projects will be implemented subject to each of
them being financially and technically viable.

e The Company is also pursuing an opportunity to
bid for transmission lines to be owned and
operated on a long-term basis in the Western

Region of India.

Besides the above, the Company is tracking
developments in the distribution sector to take
advantage of future opportunities.

OUTLOOK

The Company believes that the Indian power sector
with its growing demand-supply gap is under crisis
and in need of transformation. It would need to grow
at a much faster pace to support the GDP growth
targets set by the Gol. This presents enormous
growth and investment opportunities. However, the
key to successful implementation of these projects
lies in materialization of necessary reforms in
distribution, availability of fuel linkages and reducing
off take risk. While several States have declared
distribution reforms, the actual implementation
remains a cause for concern. The Company believes
that in the short-term, select generation projects
supplying to some of the better run distrubtion
companies would take off based on the risk appetite
of the investors. However, in the long-term, the flow
of investments would certainly depend on the pace
of reforms. The Company believes that the growing
demand and aspirations of consumers would compel
the States to launch reforms expeditiously.

6.1.

6.2.

RISK AND CONCERNS

The Risk Management process has enabled
identification of the following major risks the
Company may face and steps undertaken to mitigate
these risks.

Fuel

One common threat power utilities face is the risk of
increasing and volatile international fuel prices. To
mitigate this risk, the Company has secured 88% of
its coal requirements by way of long-term contracts
for a period of 5 years (up to FY 09) and can be
extended by another 5 years at the Company’s option.
The prices are negotiated annually. This has helped
in securing supply, getting lower prices compared to
spot market prices and avoiding market fluctuations.

About 40% of the thermal generation is from LSHS
which is sourced indigenously from IOCL, BPCL and
HPCL. Due to the reduction by ONGC, in allocation of
Bombay High Crude to these three local refineries,
availability of LSHS for the Company may not be
adequate, in future. The Company has taken initiatives
to reduce the dependence on oil by ensuring that
capacity augmentation at Trombay would be coal
based.

Availability of gas from Bombay High fields is
depleting every year. Additional gas in Mumbai region
will only be available with the commissioning of the
Dahej — Uran pipe line which is expected to be
functional by February, 2007. Talks are in progress
with ONGC/GAIL to augment gas supplies.

Environmental controls and emission norms

The Maharashtra Pollution Control Board has
imposed stringent pollution norms on effluents as
well as fuel inputs necessitating usage of low ash,
low sulphur coal. Such low ash eco-friendly coal is
available from mines in Indonesia, with whom the

Company has entered into long-term contracts.
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Deregulation

There is a risk of the off-take from the Company being
lower with deregulation since the distribution
licensees can now source power from any source. To
mitigate this risk, the Company has plans to reduce
the cost of power generation, secure consumers by
signing Power Purchase Agreements and identify new
consumers outside Mumbai.

Tariff

MERC approves the tariff for the Company’s Licence
Area. MERC formulates various regulations and the
Company participates in committees set up by MERC.

During the year, MERC has notified the regulations
relating to the Terms and Conditions of Tariff, which
interalia necessitate, integrated utilities like the
Company to disaggregate their assets and costs into
the areas of Generation, Transmission and Distribution
to enable transparency, accountability and focus on
efficiency improvements.

The new Tariff regulations, amongst other things, have
made the following significant changes to the existing
regulations:

e The Tariff shall be determined under a multi year
tariff framework (effective FY 08)

e The Return on Equity Capital (hitherto Reasonable
Return on Capital Base) in respect of generation
reduced to 149% p.a. from 16% p.a.

e The mechanism for the pass through / sharing of
the gains or losses is defined and will depend on
whether the factors affecting them were
controllable or not.

« Normative return in respect of interest on working
capital, normative debt and interest thereon,
generation O&M expenses and fuel efficiency
norms have been defined.

* Incentive entitlements based on thermal

generation / hydro stations’ availability exceeding

6.5.

certain norms have been introduced for better
performance.

e The new depreciation rates given in the regulations
are in line with the Central Electricity Regulatory
Commission recommendations and are significantly
lower than the rates prescribed in the old regulations.

However, MERC has clarified the applicability of the
norms enunciated in the Tariff Order of FY 05 as
the basis for approval of Tariff for FY 06 and the new
Tariff Regulations from FY 07 onwards. Accordingly,
the Company has computed for FY 05 and FY 06, the
excess of Clear Profit over Reasonable Return based
on the provisions of the erstwhile Electricity (Supply)
Act, 1948 and has submitted the Annual Revenue
Requirement for FY 07 to MERC under the new
regulations.

Competition

To deal with the increasing competition in the power
sector, the Company continued to take up new
initiatives under a sustainable cost reduction program.
Further, subsequent to Trombay unit 4 overhaul, the
unit capability was restored from 120 MW to 145
MW. Also, the generating assets were fully utilised at
Trombay and Hydro stations to optimise purchase of
power during peak periods.

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND SYSTEMS

The Internal Audit function was outsourced to a firm
of Chartered Accountants for the year under review.
Audit of the various departments was carried out on
the basis of the Annual Audit Plan which covers key
areas of operations and also, areas where the
operational risks are perceived to be higher. The
Internal Audit process involves identification of the
risks perceived for a particular function and a review
and evaluation of the effectiveness of the existing
controls for ensuring adherence to policies and
systems and recommendations for improvement.
The existence and effectiveness of the controls are



TATAPOWER

Eighty-seventh annual report 2005-2006

The Tata Power Company Limited

evaluated through the Control Effectiveness Index
given by the Internal Auditors.

The significant issues and recommendations are then
reported to the Audit Committee which reviews the
Internal Audit Reports and the status of
implementation of actions recommended.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY

In the current year, the total income of Rs. 4888.40
crores was higher by 13% as compared to Rs. 4317.57
crores in the previous year. The increase in revenue
from power supply is primarily due to higher volume
sold coupled with higher recoverable fuel and power
purchase costs recognised as revenue in Licence Area
and commissioning of Jojobera Unit 4. The other
income of Rs. 325.61 crores (previous year Rs. 387.13
crores) includes an extra-ordinary income of Rs. 131.97
crores relating to gain on sale of Tata Power
Broadband Company Ltd. and Rs. 22.43 crores on
sale of Power Systems Division. The Profit after Tax
increased by 11% to Rs. 610.54 crores as against
Rs. 551.36 crores in the previous year.

Break-up of Total Income
Rs. crores

2005-06 | 2004-05

Power business 4328.51 | 3674.22
(@ Revenue from Power

Supply 4293.27 | 3655.39
(b) Income from other

Operations 35.24 18.83
Other business 234.28 | 256.22
(@ Power Systems Division 195.91 | 184.53
(b) Strategic Electronics

Division 38.18 62.05
(c) Broadband — 7.71

(d) Power Plant
Refurbishment Group

& Task Force 0.19 1.93
Other income 325.61 387.13
Total income 4888.40 | 4317.57

The cost of power purchased was Rs. 583.20 crores
compared to Rs. 415.70 crores during the previous
year. The fuel cost increased from Rs. 1863.98 crores
in the previous year to Rs. 2396.51 crores in the current
year mainly due to higher oil prices.

The Generation, Distribution, Administration and
Other expenses of the Company have increased to
Rs. 721.15 crores in the current year from
Rs. 652.08 crores in the previous year.

Depreciation was lower at Rs. 278.34 crores as against
Rs. 359.62 crores in the previous year. The drop is on
account of additional debits in previous year relating
to depreciation on insurance spares capitalised in the
previous year and on amount written off in respect of
net increase in foreign currency liabilities for purchase
of fixed assets.

The drop in Interest and Finance charges from
Rs.191.44 crores in the previous year to Rs. 165.28
crores is mainly on account of capitalisation of interest
on funds allocated to project and repayment of loans.
Consequent to MERC’s clarification, the Company has
adjusted/appropriated the excess of Clear Profit over
Reasonable Return for FY 06 and FY 05.

Tax is lower primarily on account of increase in Section
80IA deduction (Jojobera Unit 3) and lower tax rates,
partly offset by reduction in tax free income. Tax savings
of Rs. 34.39 crores regarding capital gains by virtue of
investment/ proposed investment in specified assets
as per Section 54EC of the Income-tax Act, 1961.

Resource Allocation

(@ Fixed Assets
The gross fixed assets as on 31st March, 2006
were at Rs.5924.74 crores as compared to
Rs. 5465.84 crores in the previous year. The
increase is mainly on account of capitalisation of
Unit 4 at Jojobera.

(b) Working Capital
The net current assets as on 31st March. 2006 were

Rs. 1652.03 crores compared to Rs.1236.05 crores

in the previous year. The increase is mainly on account
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of higher debtors arising due to Fuel Adjustment
Charges recoverable from the consumers.
(¢ CreditRating

The Company continues to be highly rated by CRISIL
and ICRA. CRISIL reaffirmed the highest credit
rating of AAA for the Company’s debenture
program. ICRA has also upgraded its rating to LAAA
from LAA+. The Company’s international credit
rating from Standard & Poor’s and Moody’s remains

limited to the sovereign rating.

HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

During the year, employee relations were cordial. The
Company has entered into a discussion with the Tata
Hydro Company’s Employees’ Union to sign a new long-
term wage settlement. Discussions are under way and it
is hoped to be settled shortly. Long-term settlement
(Oct 05 to Dec '08) has been signed with The Tata Electric
Employees’ Union, Jojobera and TEDS Employees’
Association, SED Bangalore (Jan ‘03 to Dec ‘06).

Staff strength as of 31 March, 2006 was 2870 as
compared to 2996 in the previous year. A detailed
manpower break-up is provided below:

Manpower Strength as of 31st March, 2006

Business Area Officer| Other| Total
Staff

Licence Area 842| 1625| 2467
Strategic Electronics

Division 128 58 186
Jojobera 99 59 158
Belgaum 22 12 34
Power Systems Division 25 — 25
Total 1116 1754| 2870

ENTERPRISE RESOURCE PLANNING AND
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

SAP is being used for transacting and monitoring the
primary operational processes of the Company. A

11.

major upgrade of SAP is underway in areas such as
customer support and information management. New
high-capacity SAP servers have been installed to allow
for increased usage consistent with the Company’s
expansion plans. A customer support portal has been
introduced, accessible via the Company’s web-site,
providing our customers with the facility for on-line
viewing of their account information as well as
electronic bill payments. Also, an automated customer
query/complaint handling system has been introduced,
which will reduce complaint closure times and improve
customer satisfaction. For support to our other stake-
holders, the investor relations portal on the Company’s
web-site has been significantly upgraded.

TECHNOLOGY

The Company has continued its efforts of introducing
new technologies in the areas of Generation,
Transmission and Distribution of power, to enable it
to retain its technology leadership position and also
to get competitive advantage in the power business.

(@ Centralized control of Receiving Stations /
Automation

Centralized operation of 17 Receiving stations was
established by setting up a Central Control Room
(CCR) at Dharavi. This was achieved by extending
existing Supervisory Control And Data Acquisition
Systems. Further, three more stations have been
integrated with CCR. This will help in monitoring
and improving management of high voltage
network, optimize manpower and improve
maintenance.

(b) Distribution Automation

The Company has implemented pilot Distribution
Automation System for consumer sub-stations in
the Bandra-Kurla Complex area for improving the
services to its consumers. This is now being
extended to cover all the sub-stations in Central
Mumbai and North Mumbai area. State-of-the-
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art communication network using CDMA
technology is being used for the first time in the
country for this purpose. This will help in quicker
fault location and restoration of supply.

Power Quality Monitors and equipment
diagnostic techniques

Portable power quality monitors are being used
by the Company to carry out spot analysis of power
quality at the consumer end. It has also introduced
Sweep Frequency Response Analysis for condition
monitoring of power transformers and leakage
current analysis for predicting the condition of
the lightening arrestors. This would facilitate
supply of quality power to its consumers.

Broadband on Power Lines

In continuation of the efforts to use the electrical
network of the Company for broadband services,
a pilot project has been completed. Further, a model
for commercial application is being developed.

Online Power Interchange Data

Connectivity has been established between
Availability Based Tariff meters installed at the tie
points and Load Despatch Centre. The software
helps to accurately monitor sale and purchase and
avoid Unscheduled Interchange charges.

Bio-remediation facility for treatment of fuel
oil containing waste

The technology uses concentrated culture of
bacteria present in soil to treat the fuel oil
contamination/wastes. These bacteria are harmless
to humans and animals but consume the fuel oil
as their food. The resultant product is totally free
of hazardous fuel oil residue and can be used as
soil. Trombay Thermal Power Station adopted this
technology for treatment of the oily wastes, by
creating an in-house treatment facility using the
culture provided by Tata Energy Research Institute.

12.
12.1.

12.2.

() Cleaner Environment

Dry Fog system has been installed in the Secondary
Crusher House Area of Conveyor No. 5 in the
Coal Handling Plant at Trombay. This has reduced
dust emission. The system will be installed in four
more areas.

SUBSIDIARIES
Af-Taab Investment Company Limited

The Company holds Rs. 13.39 crores as equity in
Af-Taab Investment Company Limited (Af-Taab), its
wholly owned subsidiary.

The income for the year is Rs. 20.36 crores as against
Rs. 47.17 crores in the previous year. Profit before tax
amounted to Rs. 1.95 crores as against Rs. 33.99 crores
of the previous year. Profit after tax amounted to
Rs. 0.49 crores as against Rs. 30.64 crores in the
previous year. The previous year profit was higher
mainly on account of transfer of shares of Tata Sons
Limited to the parent company.

Chemical Terminal Trombay Limited

The Company has a 72% equity stake in Chemical
Terminal Trombay Limited (CTTL), with the other 28%
being held by Af-Taab. The equity investment of the
Company in CTTL is Rs.1.52 crores.

The income for the year stood at Rs.13.26 crores as
against Rs. 11.05 crores in the previous year. Profit
before tax amounted to Rs. 4.13 crores as against
Rs. 4.02 crores of the previous year. Profit after tax
amounted to Rs. 3.27 crores as against Rs. 4.48 crores
in the previous year. The decrease in profit after tax is
mainly on account of higher depreciation and deferred
tax adjustment.

The Indian chemical industry and in particular,
the petrochemical sector is in the growth
phase. However, the high crude prices as also the
volatility in petrochemical prices remain a cause
for concern.
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Powerlinks Transmission Limited

The Tala Transmission Project being implemented by
the Powerlinks Transmission Limited (a joint venture
between the Company and Power Grid Corporation
of India Ltd. with equity participation of 51% and
49% respectively) is nearing completion. The
Bareilly-Mandola portion of the project has been
completed three months ahead of the scheduled
completion date of June, 2006.

The Tala Transmission Project involves the construction
of the 1200 kms of 400 KV transmission lines from
Siliguri in West Bengal to Delhi region and was
conceptualized to evacuate 1020 MW of power from
Bhutan and transmit it to the power deficit states in
North India, while also facilitating the transmission of

surplus power from the North-Eastern region.

The revised cost estimate of Rs. 1612 crores has been
approved by Ministry of Power, Gol. The project is
expected to be completed within the approved cost.
The project is funded on a debt: equity ratio of 70:30.
Debt is arranged from foreign and domestic financial
institutions and bankers viz IFC, ADB, SBI and IDFC.

Tata Power Broadband Company Limited

During the year, the Company completed the sale of
Tata Power Broadband Company Limited to Videsh
Sanchar Nigam Limited for a consideration of
Rs. 201.97 crores. This resulted in a profit of
Rs. 131.97 crores.

Tata Power Trading Company Limited

Tata Power Trading Company Limited (TPTCL) is a
wholly-owned subsidiary with an equity capital of
Rs. 2 crores and is in the business of power trading.
During the current year, which was its first year of full
operation, it traded 675 MUs, earning a revenue of
Rs. 207.76 crores and profit after tax of Rs. 3.18 crores,
as against profit after tax of Rs. 8.28 lakhs in the
previous year.

12.6.

TPTCL is now a well recognized power trading company
in the country among the eighteen licenced power
trading companies. During the year MPSEB, Rajasthan
Discoms and Delhi Transco continued as its customers
and new customers like Chhattisgarh State Electricity
Board, West Bengal State Electricity Board, and
Calcutta Electricity Supply Company Ltd. were added
to its fold. TPTCL continued to source power from
Mizoram, Andhra Pradesh Transco and the Company.

In FY 05, TPTCL was issued a Category ”A” trading
licence which restricted TPTCL to trade power up to
100 MUs per annum. During the current year, the
same was upgraded to Category ‘F’ which entitles
TPTCL to trade power without any quantity restrictions.

TPTCL expects to post higher revenues in FY 07. TPTCL
has bagged close to 1000 MW power supply from
MPSEB, WBSEB and some other SEBs through the
competitive bidding route for the period commencing
May, 06. TPTCL is in the process of tying up with
customers for purchase of this power. TPTCL has also
entered into long-term power trading arrangements
with Tata Steel and other Captive Power Plants/

Independent Power Producers.

The profit margins for FYO7 may come under pressure
on account of a recent regulation issued by CERC
which restricts the trading margin for all the power

traders at 4 paise per unit.

Maithon Power Limited

The Company holds 74% equity stake in Maithon
Power Limited and the balance 26% is held by DVC.

The Maithon Project is a 1000 MW green field coal
based generation project located in the State of
Jharkhand.

About 55% of the land has been acquired, while the
rest of the land is in the process of being acquired.
The project has received all requisite clearances. Coal
linkage is available for around 50% of the total
requirement while the balance is being identified by
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Coal India. The power consumers will be DVC and
northern states such as Delhi, Rajasthan and Haryana.
The project is targeted for commissioning in FY 2010.

NELCO Limited

Effective 31st December, 2005, NELCO Limited (NELCO)
became a subsidiary of the Company. The Company
together with its wholly owned subsidiary Af-Taab,
holds 50.04% in the equity capital of NELCO. NELCO
operates in two business segments, namely
Automation and Control and Network Systems.

The Automation and Control segment comprises of
Strategic Electronics Division, Supervisory Control and
Data Acquisition Systems, Drives systems and Traction
Electronics.

The Network Systems segment provides management
of network connectivity services over Very Small
Aperture Terminals (VSAT) using satellite technology
for large and medium corporates, broking houses,
and small and medium enterprises. It also serves as a
turnkey supplier and system integrator for specific
VSAT projects of Government and PSU undertakings.

The Income for the year ended 30" September 2005
stood at Rs. 139.93 crores as against Rs. 167.30 crores
for the period ended 30" September 2004
(18 months). Income for six months ended 31% March,
2006 is Rs. 43.32 crores.

Profit After Tax for the year ended 30" September
2005 (12 Months) stood at Rs. 0.26 crores as against
loss of Rs. 18.56 crores for the year ended
30t September 2004 (18 months). Loss for six months
ended 31t March, 2006 is Rs. 7.28 crores.

12.8.

12.9.

13.

Tatanet Services Limited

Tatanet Services Limited (TNSL) is a subsidiary of NELCO,
with NELCO holding 83% in its share capital and,
therefore, a subsidiary of the Company.

TNSL is yet to begin its commercial operations and
has posted a loss of Rs. 0.44 lakhs for the current year.

TNSL has entered into a “Scheme of Arrangement”
for taking over the Commercial VSAT business of Tata
Services Limited with effect from 1t April, 2005. The
scheme has been duly approved by The Hon’ble High
Court of Bombay vide its Order dated 3 March 2006
subject to transfer of the VSAT Commercial Service
licence in the name of TNSL by the Department of
Telecommunication (DoT). TNSL is awaiting approval
from the DoT.

Alaknanda Hydro Power Company Limited

The Company sold its shareholding in Alaknanda
Hydro Power Company Limited having considered it
not in alignment with its current strategy and to focus
on other major projects.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statements in the Management Discussion and
Analysis, describing the Company’s objectives,
projections and estimates, are forward-looking
statements and progressive, within the meaning of
applicable security laws and regulations. Actual results
may vary from those expressed or implied, depending
upon economic conditions, Government Policies and
other incidental / related factors.



W

TATA

Auditors’ Report

TO THE MEMBERS OF

THE TATA POWER COMPANY LIMITED

1.

We have audited the attached balance sheet of THE TATA POWER COMPANY LIMITED, as at 31st March, 2006, and also the profit
and loss account and the cash flow statement for the year ended on that date, annexed thereto. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in India. Those Standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2003 issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (4A)
of section 227 of the Companies Act, 1956, we enclose in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 4 and
5 of the said Order.

Further to our comments in the Annexure referred to above, we report that:

(@) we have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purposes of our audit;

(b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company, so far as appears from our
examination of those books. The report on the accounts of Bangladesh branch audited by other auditors has been forwarded
to the Company and has been appropriately dealt with;

(c) the balance sheet, profit and loss account and cash flow statement dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books
of account;

(d) without qualifying our opinion,

(i)  we draw attention to Note 12 to the Notes forming part of the Accounts. As stated in the note, subject to the outcome
of the Appeal filed before the Appellate Tribunal, no adjustment has been made by the Company in respect of the
standby charges accounted for as revenue in earlier periods and estimated at Rs.503 crores and its consequential effects
for the period upto 31st March, 2006. The impact of the above on the results for the year cannot presently be determined
pending the ultimate outcome of the matter.

(i) we draw attention to Note 10 (d) to the Notes forming part of the Accounts. As mentioned in the note the Company
proposes to appeal in the Supreme Court in connection with an Appellate Tribunal Order setting aside the Maharashtra
Electricity Regulatory Commission (MERC) Order confirming the Company's right of distribution in certain areas and
related matters thereto and allowing as a whole the appeal preferred by Reliance Energy Ltd. The financial consequences
of the Appellate Tribunal Order has neither been quantified in the Order nor been ascertained by the Company. The
Company is of the view, supported by legal opinion, that the Tribunal's Order can be successfully challenged. In view
of this no provision/adjustment has been considered necessary.

(e) in our opinion, the balance sheet and the profit and loss account comply with the accounting standards referred to in sub-
section (3C) of section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956;
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on the basis of written representations received from the directors, as on 31st March, 2006 and taken on record by the Board
of Directors, we report that none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2006 from being appointed as a director in
terms of clause (g) of sub-section (1) of section 274 of the Companies Act, 1956;

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the said accounts give the
information required by the Companies Act, 1956, in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India:

(1) in the case of the balance sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2006;
(2) in the case of the profit and loss account, of the profit for the year ended on that date; and

(3) in the case of the cash flow statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

For S. B. BILLIMORIA & CO. For A. F. FERGUSON & CO.
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
UDAYAN SEN R. A. BANGA

Partner. Partner.

Membership Number: 31220 Membership Number : 37915

Mumbai, 29th May, 2006
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Annexure to the Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 3 of our report of even date.

(i)

(iii

In respect of fixed assets, the Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details
and situation in most cases of such assets.

Physical verification of fixed assets was carried out during the year by the management, in accordance with the established
system of periodical verification of fixed assets once in two / three years. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is
reasonable, considering the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Except in respect of one location where we have
been informed that the reconciliation with books is in progress, no material discrepancies between the book records and the
physical records were noticed in respect of the assets physically verified.

During the year, in our opinion, a substantial part of fixed assets has not been disposed off by the Company.

The inventory of the Company has been physically verified during the year by the management under a perpetual inventory
system, except for fuel which was verified during the year and / or at the end of the year. In respect of materials lying with third
parties, these have substantially been physically verified or confirmed by third parties. In our opinion the frequency of verification
is reasonable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the procedures of physical verification of inventory
followed by the management were found reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the Company and the nature of its
business.

On the basis of our examination of records of inventory, in our opinion, the Company has maintained proper records of
inventory and the discrepancies noticed on physical verification between the physical stocks and book records were not material
in relation to the operations of the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has granted unsecured loans, to
three companies covered in the register maintained under section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956. The maximum amount of
loans granted during the year which are at call was Rs.140.73 crores and the year end balance of loans given to such companies
was Rs.82.80 crores.

In our opinion, the rate of interest and other terms and conditions on which loans have been granted to companies, firms or
other parties covered in the register maintained under section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956 are not, prima facie, prejudicial
to the interest of the Company.

The parties are repaying the principal amounts as stipulated and have generally been regular in payment of interest.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no overdue amount of loans granted by
the Company to companies, firms or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 301 of the Companies Act,
1956.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not taken any loans, secured
or unsecured from Companies, firms or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 301 of the Companies
Act, 1956. As the Company has not taken any loans from parties covered in the register maintained under section 301 of the
Companies Act, 1956, clause (iii) (f) and (iii) (g) of the Order are not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, having regard to the explanations that some of the
items are of a special nature and their prices cannot be compared with alternative quotations, there is an adequate internal control
system commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business with regard to purchases of inventory, fixed assets
and with regard to the sale of goods and services. Further, on the basis of our examination, and according to the information and
explanations given to us, we have neither come across nor have we been informed of any instance of major weaknesses in the
aforesaid internal control system.

@)

(b)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the particulars of contracts or arrangements
referred to in section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956, have been entered in the register required to be maintained under that
section.

In our opinion, and having regard to our comments in para (iv) above, and according to the information and explanations given
to us, the transactions made in pursuance of such contracts or arrangements and exceeding the value of rupees five lakhs in
respect of any party during the year have been made at prices which are reasonable having regard to the prevailing market
prices at the relevant time.
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(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the provisions of
sections 58A, 58AA and any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits)
Rules, 1975, as applicable, with regard to the deposits accepted from the public. According to the information and explanations
given to us, no order under the aforesaid sections has been passed by the Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or
Reserve Bank of India or any Court or any other Tribunal, on the Company.

In our opinion, the internal audit function carried out during the year by a firm of Chartered Accountants appointed by the management
have been commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company in respect of the electricity business and electronic
products of the Company pursuant to the Rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section
209 (1) (d) of the Companies Act, 1956. We are of the opinion that prima facie the prescribed accounts and records have been
maintained and are being made up. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the records with a view to determining
whether they are accurate or complete.

(@) According to the information and explanations given to us and according to the books and records as produced and examined
by us, in our opinion, the undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, investor education and protection fund, employees'
state insurance, income tax, sales tax, wealth tax, customs duty, excise duty, cess and other material statutory dues applicable
to the Company have generally been regularly deposited during the year with the appropriate authorities. In case of service tax
there have been delays in depositing the dues with the authorities during the year. According to the information and explanations
given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of income tax, wealth tax, sales tax, service tax, customs duty, excise
duty and cess were in arrears, as at 31st March, 2006 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) As at 31st March, 2006 according to the records of the Company and the information and explanations given to us, the
following are the particulars of disputed dues on account of income tax, sales tax, wealth tax, service tax, customs duty, excise
duty and cess matters that have not been deposited:

Name of the statute Nature of the Amount Period to which the Forum where pending

Dues (Rs. in Crores) amount relates

Various years
covering the period

Income Tax Laws Income tax 5.23 1997-1998 Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals)

(incl. interest)

Customs Laws Customs duty 4.13 1999-2000, Appellate Authority - upto Commissioner

1993 to 1995, level
1999-2000 and
2001 to 2005

Central Excise Excise Duty 0.86 1992-19931t01995-1996 | Appellate Authority - upto Commissioner
Laws level

0.04 1993-1994 t01995-1996 | Appellate Authority - Tribunal level

Cess Laws Cess 7.78 1992-2003 Appellate Authority of The Water

(Prevention and Control of Pollution)
Cess Act, 1977

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

The Company does not have accumulated losses as at 31st March, 2006 and has not incurred cash losses during the financial year
ended on that date or in the immediately preceding financial year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues
to any financial institution, bank or to debenture holders during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans and advances on the basis of
security by way of pledge of shares, debentures and other securities.

The provisions of any special statute as specified under Clause (xiii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.
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(xiv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a dealer or trader in securities.

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the terms and conditions on which the Company has
given guarantees for loans taken by others from banks or financial institutions are not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

(xvi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term loans taken by the Company have been
applied for the purposes for which they were obtained and to the extent that these have not been utilized, Euro notes of Rs.250.01
crores, as explained, is invested in long term and short term investments.

(xvii) Based on the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the balance sheet of the Company, in our
opinion, there are no funds raised on short term basis which have been used for long term investment.

(xviii) The Company has not made any preferential allotment of shares to parties and companies covered in the register maintained under
section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956 during the year.

(xix) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has created securities / charges in
respect of the debentures issued.

(xx) The Company has not raised any money by public issue during the year.

(xxi) According to the information and explanations given to us, during the year, no fraud on or by the Company has been noticed or

reported.
For S. B. BILLIMORIA & CO. For A. F. FERGUSON & CO.
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
UDAYAN SEN R. A. BANGA
Partner. Partner.
Membership Number: 31220 Membership Number : 37915

Mumbai, 29th May, 2006
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As at 31-03-2005

Schedule Rupees Rupees Rupees
No. Page Crores Crores Crores
FUNDS EMPLOYED:
I Y O Y Y S CA” 48 197.92 197.92
2. RESERVES AND SURPLUS .....ociiiiieiieiesie e eieeee e “B” 49 4,782.30 4,363.13
3 SPECIAL APPROPRIATION TOWARDS PROJECT COST ......ccuceee. 533.61 533.61
4. CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS FROM CONSUMERS .......cccccoveernienne. 41.81 41.81
5. SECURED LOANS .....oiiiiiiiieiieiieieie sttt o 50 946.00 1,059.07
6. UNSECURED LOANS ....ooiiiiiiieeieaiieieie et D" 51 1,809.00 1,800.94
7. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY (NET) (See Note 25) .....ccccoovvveieeriennne Nil 11.32
8. TOTAL FUNDS EMPLOYED ......cooveiiiiieniisiieieeeeieeee e 8,310.64 8,007.80
APPLICATION OF FUNDS:
9. FIXED ASSETS ..oeiieeiiiesteeieeieeie e nte sttt e e see e eneeneens “E” 51
GrOSS BIOCK ...ttt 5,924.74 5,465.84
Less : Depreciation t0 date ........ccccoceeevireiiie e 2,921.72 2,657.37
3,003.02 2,808.47
Capital Work-in-Progress (including advances
against capital expenditure Rs. 12.39 crores-
Previous Year RS. 35.68 Crores) ........cccovveeuvereeneesveneenineen 211.81 437.65
Increase in foreign currency liabilities (net) for
purchase of capital assets ...........cccoeirviiiiiiiniieeeeee 645.32 645.32
Less : Amount written off to date ... 645.32 645.32
Nil Nil
3,214.83 3,246.12
10. INVESTMENTS ..ot "E 52 3,412.17 3,5602.92
11. DEFERRED TAX ASSET (NET) (See Note 25) .....cccccoeriiviervannnnen 16.15 Nil
12. CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS AND ADVANCES .......ccccoivvviieieenn ch 54
(B)  INVENTOTIES ..t 442.26 297.03
(B)  SUNArY DEBLOrS ... 1,058.23 696.63
(c) Cash and Bank BalanCes...........cccccvereerieeiiieiieiiesee e 990.55 979.60
(d)  Other CUIrent ASSETS ......ccuvirverieiiiiie et 18.06 12.87
(€) Loans and AdVANCES ..........cccveeruieirenieeniieiieesieesieesieesieesieees 463.94 537.49
2,973.04 2,523.62
Less:
13. CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS ......cccoviiiinieieniinieninnne HY 55
Current Liabilities .........ocoiiiiiiiiiiieiciese e 731.81 706.87
PIOVISIONS ...ttt 589.20 580.70
1,321.01 1,287.57
14, NET CURRENT ASSETS ..ooiiiiiiiieeieeieie e 1,652.03 1,236.05
15. MISCELLANEOUS EXPENDITURE
(to the extent not written off) ... T 55 15.46 22.71
16. TOTAL APPLICATION OF FUNDS ......cooviiiiiiiiiiiieieienie s 8,310.64 8,007.80
17. NOTES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS J 60
As per our report attached. For and on behalf of the Board,
For S.B.BILLIMORIA & CO. For A. F. FERGUSON & CO. R. N. TATA
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Chairman
UDAYAN SEN R. A. BANGA B. J. SHROFF S. RAMAKRISHNAN
Partner Partner Secretary Executive Director
Mumbai, 29th May, 2006. Mumbai, 29th May, 2006.



Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 31st March, 2006

Previous Year

Schedule Rupees Rupees Rupees
No. Page Crores Crores Crores
INCOME:
1. REVENUE FROM POWER SUPPLY [See Note 21(a)] . 4,314.19 3,643.39
Less: Cash Discount 20.43 11.51
Consumer Benefit Account (@ includes Rs. 9.82 crores in respect of previous
VAT ettt E ettt h et ane 24.89@ Nil
4,268.87 3,631.88
Add :  Wheeling Charges reCoVerable .............oociiiiiiiiiiiiiiicececcee e 24.40 23.51
4,293.27 3,655.39
2. INCOME FROM OTHER OPERATIONS ......ocuoieorieersirisnessseesssesssssssssesssasesssssesssenos 1 56
a. Sale of Electronic Products .. 33.03 57.60
Less: Excise Duty 0.48 0.29
32.55 57.31
b. Other Operations .. 235.05 214.34
267.60 271.65
3. OTHER INCOME ..ottt 1 56 325.61 387.13
4. NET ADJUSTMENT IN RESPECT OF PREVIOUS YEARS . 1.92 3.40
5. TOTALINCOME T 488840 T 431757
EXPENDITURE : - -
6. COST OF POWER PURCHASED [See Note 21(b)] . 585.78 415.70
Less: Cash Discount 2.58 Nil
583.20 415.70
T COST OF FUEL weoevvevoneecssaeeesssseeesssse oo 2,396.51 1,863.98
8. GENERATION, DISTRIBUTION, ADMINISTRATION AND OTHER EXPENSES . 2 57 721.15 652.08
9.  TAX ON SALE OF ELECTRICITY 26.47 45.96
10. DEPRECIATION/AMORTISATION 278.34 359.62
11.  INTEREST AND FINANCE CHARGES . 3 58 165.28 191.44
12.  PROVISION FOR CONTINGENCIES (30.00) 30.00
13. TOTAL EXPENDITURE .. 4,140.95 3,558.78
PROFIT BEFORE TAXES AND STATUTORY APPROPRIATIONS ........ccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiniccieee 747.45 758.79
14.  PROVISION FOR TAXATION
a. CURRENT TAX <ottt ettt 146.76 139.88
b. DEFERRED TAX .ttt sttt (23.41) 29.77
C. FRINGE BENEFIT TAX ...ttt 6.94 Nil
130.29 169.65
15.  PROVISION FOR TAXATION IN RESPECT OF EARLIER YEARS
a. CURRENT TAX .. ittt 10.29 18.54
b. DEFERRED TAX .ttt (4.06) 18.78
6.23 37.32
16.  PROVISION FOR WEALTH TAX (NE) .ttt 0.39 0.46
PROFIT AFTER TAXES AND BEFORE STATUTORY APPROPRIATIONS .......cooviiviiiieiienen 610.54 551.36
17.  STATUTORY APPROPRIATIONS . 4 58 35.29 (3.73)
DISTRIBUTABLE PROFITS 575.25 555.09
APPROPRIATIONS :
18.  PROPOSED DIVIDEND .....oiiioiiiiieierieetest ettt ettt 168.41 148.60
19. ADDITIONAL INCOME-TAX ON DIVIDEND [including Rs. (0.10) crore of previous year-
Previous Year- Rs. 0.36 crore] 23.52 21.30
20.  TRANSFER TO GENERAL RESERVE 150.00 150.00
341.93 319.90
BALANCE CARRIED TO BALANCE SHEET .....ooiiiiiieeciece e 233.32 235.19
21. EARNINGS PER SHARE (in Rs.)
(on distributable profits on shares outstanding)
(Face Value Rs. 10) (See Note 34)
BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE .......oiiiiiiiieieeitecie e 29.03 28.02
DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE ..ottt 27.34 27.84
22. NOTES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS .....ouuiiiimmeemmiiimeessneissssesnssssnesssssesns e 60
As per our report attached to the Balance Sheet. For and on behalf of the Board,
For S.B.BILLIMORIA & CO. For A. F. FERGUSON & CO. R. N. TATA
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Chairman
UDAYAN SEN R. A. BANGA B. J. SHROFF S. RAMAKRISHNAN
Partner Partner Secretary Executive Director

Mumbai, 29th May, 2006.

Mumbai, 29th May, 2006.
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2006

Year ended Year ended
31-03-2006 31-03-2005
Rs. Crores Rs. Crores
A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Net Profit before Taxes and Extraordinary Items 747.45 758.79
Adjustments for:
Depreciation/Amortisation 278.34 359.62
Interest Expenditure 148.46 166.98
Interest Income (109.83) (97.80)
Income from Trade Investments (19.31) (1.27)
Dividend from Subsidiaries (1.22) (9.80)
Income from Other Investments (20.81) (7.91)
Provision for doubtful debts/advances (Net) 15.44 222
Provision for diminution in value of investments written back (Net) (2.00) (46.22)
Provision for Contingencies (30.00) 30.00
Retiring Gratuities 9.54 24.54
Leave Encashment 7.25 6.01
Pension Scheme 4.76 2.58
Profit on sale/retirement of Assets (Net) [including profit on sale of Power Systems Division
Rs. 22.43 crores - Previous Year including profit on sale of power plant at Wadi - Rs. 32.75 crores] (31.80) (35.96)
Loss on Exchange on loan repayments (Net) (0.06) 0.03
Guarantee Fees for Loans Nil 0.04
Profit on Sale of Investments (Net) (149.39) (191.01)
Unrealised Exchange Loss/(Gain) (Net) (0.01) 5.42
Provision for future foreseeable losses, etc. 3.77 Nil
Provision for Warranties (0.22) 0.59
Bad Debts 6.75 0.02
Miscellaneous Expenditure written off 9.82 18.20
119.48 226.28
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 866.93 985.07
Adjustments for:
Trade & Other Receivables (401.15) (41.62)
Inventories (145.23) (31.04)
Trade Payables (6.01) (189.05)
(552.39) (261.71)
Cash Generated from Operations 31454 723.36
Taxes Paid (including Fringe Benefit Tax) (Net) (3.95) (229.50)
Retiring Gratuities Paid (5.82) (17.38)
Leave Encashment Paid (3.18) (5.00)
Pension Paid (2.69) (2.62)
Voluntary Retirement Scheme Compensation Paid (2.04) (24.77)
(17.68) (279.27)
Net Cash from Operating Activities A 296.86 444.09
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of Fixed Assets (231.85) (418.97)
Sale of Fixed Assets 10.65 4.30
Purchase of Investments (3,882.24) (6,973.38)
Sale of Investments 4,216.16 6,436.51
Interest Received 81.56 101.90
Inter-corporate deposits/advances (Net) (91.16) 157.00
Income from Trade Investments 19.31 127
Income from Subsidiaries 122 9.80
Income from Other Investments 20.81 8.04
Sale proceeds on sale of Power Plant at Wadi Nil 235.45
Sale proceeds on sale of Broadband Division Nil 130.00
Net Cash from Investing Activities B 144.46 308.08,
C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Proceeds from Borrowings 22.16 1,536.83
Repayment of Borrowings (154.09) (396.68)
Guarantee/Upfront Fees for Loans Nil (0.04)
Interest Paid (150.78) (164.99)
Dividend Paid (148.03) (137.86)
Additional Income-tax on Dividend Paid (20.84) (18.13)
Securities Premium received 0.03 Nil
FCCB and Debenture Issue Expenses Paid (2.21) (20.55)
Net Cash used in Financing Activities C (453.76) 798.58
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) (12.44) 934.59
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at 1st April, 2005 (Opening Balance) 986.49 51.90
Adjustment consequent to sale of Broadband Division Nil *
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at 31st March, 2006 (Closing Balance) 974.05 986.49
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Notes : 1.
2.

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2006 (Contd.)

Interest paid is exclusive of and purchase of Fixed Assets is inclusive of interest capitalised Rs.15.06 crores (Previous Year Rs. 9.29 crores).

Cash and cash equivalents include :

i)  Cash and Cheques on Hand (includes cheques on hand Rs. Nil - 31st March, 2005 - Rs. 10.53 crores)
i) Current Accounts with Scheduled Banks

Term Deposits with Scheduled Banks

Term Deposits with Standard Chartered Bank, London - Non-Scheduled Bank

Margin money deposit with a Scheduled Bank (against a Bank Guarantee).

=

=

Add: Unrealised Exchange Loss/(Gain) included in Cash and Cash Equivalents

@ Includes Rs. 885.10 crores (31st March, 2005 - Rs. 421.14 crores) in foreign currency.
! In foreign currency

Purchase of Investments - others - include purchase of shares in Subsidiaries:

(a) Tata Power Broadband Co. Ltd. Rs. Nil (Previous Year Rs. 69.90 crores)

(b) Powerlinks Transmission Ltd. Rs. 114.70 crores (Previous Year Rs. 32.56 crores)

(c) Maithon Power Ltd. Rs. 4.24 crores (Previous Year Rs. Nil)

(d) Preference Shares of Tata Power Trading Co. Ltd. Rs. 18.00 crores (Previous Year Rs. Nil)

Sale of Investments - others - include sale of shares in Subsidiaries:

(a) Tata Power Broadband Co. Ltd. Rs. 201.97 crores (Previous Year Rs. Nil)

(b) Alaknanda Hydro Power Co. Ltd. Rs. 3.12 crores (Previous Year Rs. Nil)

(c) Tata Petrodyne Ltd. Rs. Nil (Previous Year Rs. 327.00 crores)

Sale of Investments - others - includes sale of shares in Associates - Tata Ceramics Ltd. Rs. Nil (Previous Year Rs. 14.55 crores)
Sale proceeds received on sale of Power Systems Division - Rs. Nil (Refer Note 15 in Notes forming part of the Accounts - Schedule ""J™")

Previous year's figures have been restated, wherever necessary, to conform to this year's classification.

Year ended
31-03-2006
Rs. Crores
0.21

25.36
886.15

*

78.83
990.55
(16.50)
974.05

@

1

Year ended
31-03-2005
Rs. Crores
11.15
28.27
424.14 @
437.21 !
78.83
979.60
6.89
986.49

As per our report attached.

For S.B.BILLIMORIA & CO. For A. F. FERGUSON & CO.
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
UDAYAN SEN R. A. BANGA

Partner Partner

Mumbai, 29th May, 2006.

B. J. SHROFF
Secretary

Mumbai, 29th May, 2006.

For and on behalf of the Board,

R. N. TATA
Chairman

S. RAMAKRISHNAN
Executive Director
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Schedule forming part of the Balance Sheet

SCHEDULE “A” : SHARE CAPITAL

AUTHORISED CAPITAL —

2,29,00,000

30,00,00,000

ISSUED CAPITAL —
20,35,37,712

Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 100

Equity Shares of Rs.10 each [including 2,30,308 shares (31st
March, 2005 - 2,30,308 shares) not allotted but held in
abeyance, 4,40,270 shares cancelled pursuant to a Court
Order and 48,04,040 shares of the Company held by the
erstwhile The Andhra Valley Power Supply Company Limited
cancelled pursuant to the Scheme of Amalgamation
sanctioned by the High Court of Judicature, Bombay]. ......

SUBSCRIBED CAPITAL -

19,78,97,864

1,65,230

Equity Shares of Rs.10 each (excluding 2,30,308 shares
not allotted but held in abeyance, 4,40,270 shares cancelled
pursuant to a Court Order and 48,04,040 shares of the
Company held by the erstwhile The Andhra Valley Power
Supply Company Limited cancelled pursuant to the Scheme
of Amalgamation sanctioned by the High Court of
Judicature, BOmMbDay). .......ccceveiiiieeiiiiee e

Less : Calls in arrears [including Rs.0.01 crore (31st March,
2005 - 0.01 crore) in respect of the erstwhile The Andhra
Valley Power Supply Company Limited and the erstwhile
The Tata Hydro-Electric Power Supply Company Limited] ..

Add: Equity Shares forfeited - Amount paid - ...................

Of the above Equity Shares :

(i) 1,67,500 shares are allotted at par as fully paid
pursuant to contracts without payment being received
in cash.

(i) 11,33,790 shares issued as Bonus Shares by
capitalisation of General Reserve.

(i) 49,63,500 shares issued on exercise of the options by
the financial institutions for the conversion of part of
their loans/subscription to debentures.

(iv) 56,81,818 shares are allotted at premium as fully paid
pursuant to contracts without payment being received
in cash.

(v) 5,20,84,832 shares (excluding 47,560 shares held in
abeyance) have been allotted to the shareholders of
the erstwhile The Andhra Valley Power Supply Company
Limited pursuant to the Scheme of Amalgamation
sanctioned by the High Court of Judicature, Bombay.

(vi) 3,50,97,824 shares (excluding 45,168 shares held in
abeyance) have been allotted to the shareholders of
the erstwhile The Tata Hydro-Electric Power Supply
Company Limited pursuant to the Scheme of
Amalgamation sanctioned by the High Court of
Judicature, Bombay.

As at

31-03-2005

Rupees Rupees Rupees
Crores Crores Crores
229.00 229.00
300.00 300.00
529.00 529.00

203.54 203.54

197.90 197.90
0.04 0.04
197.86 197.86
0.06 0.06
197.92 197.92
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Schedule forming part of the Balance Sheet
SCHEDULE “B” : RESERVES & SURPLUS
Opening Balance Additions Deductions Closing Balance
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees
Crores Crores Crores Crores
STATUTORY RESERVES:
[Under the repealed Electricity (Supply) Act,1948]
TARIFFS AND DIVIDENDS CONTROL RESERVE .............. 22.43 24.89 [a] — 47.32
CONTINGENCIES RESERVE NO. 1 [See Note 5()] ........ 179.83 10.40 [a] — 190.23
CONTINGENCIES RESERVE NO. 2 [See Note 5(b)] ........ 13.38 — — 13.38
DEVELOPMENT RESERVE
(created prior to 1st April, 1976) .....cooevvvveeriiieeeiiienn, 5.29 — — 5.29
DEFERRED TAXATION LIABILITY FUND ......cooovvveiirienn. 395.85 — — 395.85
INVESTMENT ALLOWANCE RESERVE ........ccooiiiiiiinnnen. 121.18 — = 121.18
(including Development Reserve created after
31st March, 1976)
DEBT REDEMPTION RESERVE .......ccoviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiceeeee 51.94 — == 51.94
DEBENTURE REDEMPTION RESERVE ........ccoccvvveiinnnen. 56.63 — — 56.63
OTHER RESERVES:
CAPITAL RESERVE ..o 0.67 — — 0.67
CAPITAL REDEMPTION RESERVE .......cooviiiieiiiiieiiienn 1.60 — — 1.60
SECURITIES PREMIUM ....ocviiiiiiiieiiiiecceeeceee e 723.30 0.03 [b] — 723.33
Less: Adjustment of Global Depository Shares Issue
Expenses (Schedule "I").......cccooviiiiiiiicniiens 4.78 — 0.53 [c] 4.25][c]
718.52 0.03 (0.53) 719.08
DEBENTURE REDEMPTION RESERVE ........ccoccvvieiiinnnnn. 72.81 — — 72.81
GENERAL RESERVE .....ccoiiiiiiiiie e 1,290.17 150.00 [d] — 1,440.17
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT .....cooivireiiriieenieeeeeireeenn 1,432.83 233.32 [d] — 1,666.15
Total Reserves and Surplus - 2005-06 ................... 4,363.13 418.64 (0.53) 4,782.30
-2004-05 ...coooiiienns 4,277.00 405.17 319.04 4,363.13

[a] Amount set aside during the year including Rs. 9.82 crores to Tariffs and Dividends Control Reserve in respect of 2004-05

(See Note 13)

[b] Securities Premium received during the year.

[c] Adjustment of Global Depository Share issue expenses after charging Rs. 0.53 crore to the Profit and Loss Account for the year.

[d] Transfer from Profit and Loss Account.
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Schedule forming part of the Balance Sheet

SCHEDULE “C” : SECURED LOANS

c 3
=

As at
31-03-2005
Rupees Rupees Rupees
Crores Crores Crores
DEBENTURES :

8.25% Secured, Redeemable, Non-Convertible Debentures (1999-2009) ...... 124.72 154.29
10.90% Secured, Redeemable, Non-Convertible Debentures (2001-2006) .... Nil 40.00
10.20% Secured, Redeemable, Non-Convertible Debentures (2001-2010) .... 131.00 131.00
7.10% Secured, Redeemable, Non-Convertible Debentures (2004-2015) ...... 600.00 600.00
855.72 925.29

OTHER LOANS AND ADVANCES :
Loan from ANZ Grindlays Export Finance Ltd.(ANZ) ** .........cccccniirieiiieiene Nil 51.79
Term Loan from Infrastructure Development Finance Company Limited......... 60.00 60.00
Loan from Export Import Bank of India ** .........ccccccoiiveiiiie e, 30.28 21.99
90.28 133.78
946.00 1,059.07

** |n foreign currency

(if)

(i)
(iv)

Security

The Debentures mentioned in (a) have been secured by land, moveable and immovable properties in Maharashtra as also receiving
stations, sub-stations and godowns in Maharashtra.

The Debentures mentioned in (b), (c) and (d) have been secured by land in Village Takve Khurd (Maharashtra), moveable and
immovable properties in and outside Maharashtra, as also all transmission stations/lines, receiving stations and sub-stations in
Maharashtra.

The loan from ANZ mentioned in (e) has been secured by mortgage/charge on the assets and licences held by the Company.
The loan from IDFC mentioned in (f) has been secured by a charge on the moveable assets of the Company.

The loan from Export Import Bank of India mentioned in (g) has been secured by receivables (present and future), book debts and
outstanding moneys.

Redemption

The debentures mentioned in (a) are redeemable at par in forty equated quarterly instalments commencing from 15th October,
1999. The Company had the call option to redeem the same at the end of 5 years from 24th November, 1999, by giving 30 days
prior period notice, which was not exercised.

The debentures mentioned in (b) have been redeemed at par in five equal instalments commencing from 24th January, 2002.
The debentures mentioned in (c) are redeemable at par in three equal instalments commencing from 30th July, 2008.

The debentures mentioned in (d) are redeemable at premium in three instalments at the end of 9th, 10th and 11th year from 18th
October, 2004. The Company has the call option to redeem the same at a premium of 11.20% at the end of five years from 18th
October, 2004.
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Schedules forming part of the Balance Sheet
SCHEDULE “D” : UNSECURED LOANS
As at
31-03-2005
Rupees Rupees Rupees
Crores Crores Crores
FIXED DEPOSITS :
(@) From Shareholders (ShOrt term) ........cooveereiiiiee e Nil 0.04
(b)  From Others Nil 25.85
(c) Interest accrued and due on (b) above.... ...ccccceeviieeiiie e _ Nil . *
Nil 25.89
SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES :
FROM BANKS -
(d) Temporary overdrawn balance in bank current accounts .............c.......... 17.24 23.09
FROM OTHERS -
(e) Short Term Borrowing from COMPANIEs ..........ceevrvvveerieeeeeiiiieesiieee e 5.07 5.07
22.31 28.16
OTHER LOANS AND ADVANCES :
(f)  7.875% EUro NOES (2007)™ ™ ...ooiiiiiieeiieeitie ettt 542.16 533.08
(@) 8.500% Euro Notes (2017)** .... 288.34 288.34
(h) 1% Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (2010) [See Note 3(a)] ** ........ 897.20 879.60
(i)  Sales Tax Deferral (repayable in 2014-2018) ........cccceecvveirieniiiiiieiieee, 56.67 42.50
() Loans from Housing Development Finance Corporation Ltd. (including
short term Rs. 1.12 crores - 31st March, 2005 - Rs. 1.05 crores)............. 2.32 3.37
1,786.69 1,746.89
1,809.00 1,800.94
** Repayable in foreign currencies
SCHEDULE “E” : FIXED ASSETS
Rs. Crores
GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION/AMORTISATION NET BLOCK
As at Additions Deductions As at Asat For the Deductions As at As at As at
1-4-2005 31-3-2006 1-4-2005 year 31-3-2006 | 31-3-2006  31-3-2005
(at cost) (at cost)
INTANGIBLE ASSETS :
1. GOODWILL...eoiererrereerreneennenns 7.60 — 7.60 — 6.08 1.14 7.22 — Nil 1.52
2. TECHNICAL KNOW-HOW............. 0.95 — — 0.95 0.87 0.07 — 0.94 0.01 0.08
TANGIBLE ASSETS :
3. LAND (including
land development)...................... 15.45 — 0.06 15.39 — — — — 15.39 15.45
4. LEASEHOLD LAND...... . 4.48 0.10 0.26 4.32 0.25 0.05 — 0.30 4.02 4.23
5. HYDRAULIC WORKS... . 467.83 1.29 0.02  469.10 65.78  14.50 0.01 80.27 388.83  402.05
6. BUILDINGS......ovvemrrrrirericirnniriens 413.78 73.09 020  486.67@| 12590  18.75 0.13 144.52 342.15 287.88
7. RAILWAY SIDINGS,
ROADS, CROSSINGS, ETC............ 21.11 0.32 0.02 21.41 5.77 0.64 0.01 6.40 15.01 15.34
8. PLANT AND MACHINERY............. 3,768.91 377.15# 12.44 4,133.62 |2,119.06 201.60 471 231595 | 1,817.67 1,649.85
9. TRANSMISSION LINES,
CABLE NETWORK, ETC...ccourernnne 678.79 23.76 *  702.55 27097  36.05 *  307.02 395.53  407.82
10. FURNITURE, FIXTURES
AND OFFICE EQUIPMENT............ 31.42 2.66 1.09 32.99 18.09 2.29 0.61 19.77 13.22 13.33
11. MOTOR VEHICLES, LAUNCHES,
BARGES, ETC 31.34 3.80 158 33.56 22.83 3.25 1.30 24.78 8.78 8.51
12. HELICOPTERS 24.18 — — 24.18 21.77 — — 21.77 2.41 2.41
TOTAL - 2005-2006 5,465.84 482.17 23.27 5924.74 |2657.37 278.34 13.99 2,921.72 | 3,003.02 2,808.47
2004-2005 5,534.70 315.36 384.22 5465.84 |2,364.36 359.62 66.61 2,657.37 | 2,808.47 3,170.34

@ Buildings include Rs.* being cost of ordinary shares in co-operative housing societies.
# Plant and Machinery includes Exchange loss (net) capitalised Rs. 4.42 crores (31st March, 2005 - Rs. 43.87 crores).
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Schedule forming

SCHEDULE “F” : INVESTMENTS

CONTINGENCIES RESERVE INVESTMENTS-

A.

B.

DEFER
A

B.

TRADI
A.

Government of India Securities - (Quoted)
6.85% GOI (2012) .ot
Other Securities - (Quoted)

5.20% EXIM Bonds G11 Series (2003-04) .
6.75% Unit Trust of India - Tax free US 64
BoNdS 2008 ...

Other Securities - (Unquoted)
5.50% NABARD Capital Gain Bonds (2009) ..
5.50% NABARD Capital Gain Bonds (2011) ..

RED TAXATION LIABILITY FUND INVESTMENTS-
Government of India Securities - (Quoted)
6.85% GOl (2012) ...oovvoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeenenen
Other Securities - (Quoted)

6.75% Unit Trust of India - Tax free US 64

Bonds 2008
9.40% IDBI Flexibonds (2010)
7.85% EXIM Bonds F6 Series (2012)

Other Securities - (Unquoted)
7% NABARD Capital Gain Bonds (2008) ...
5.50% NABARD Capital Gain Bonds (2011) ..

E INVESTMENTS -
Ordinary Shares-(Quoted ) fully paid up
NELCO Ltd. .
Tata Teleservices ( ..
VSNL LEd. o
Power Trading Corporation of India Ltd.

Ordinary Shares-(Unquoted) fully paid up
Tata Services Ltd. .........cceeenne
The Associated Building Co. Ltd.
Yashmun Engineers Ltd. .
Tata Projects Ltd. ......
Tata Teleservices Ltd ..
Panatone Finvest Ltd.
North Delhi Power Limited .

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES -

A.

OTHE
A.

Ordinary Shares - (Quoted) fully paid up
NELCO Ltd. (subsidiary with effect from
31st December, 2005) ........cccoevueiieieiieieieeeeaes

Ordinary Shares - (Unquoted) fully paid up
Chemical Terminal Trombay Ltd.
Af-Taab Investment Co. Ltd ...
Alaknanda Hydro Power Co. Ltd. .
Powerlinks Transmission Ltd. .
Tata Power Trading Co. Ltd. ..
Tata Power Broadband Co. Ltd. .
Maithon Power Ltd. ..............

Preference Shares-(Unquoted) fully paid up
Tata Power Trading Co. Ltd. .......ccccoooviiviiviicinenne

R INVESTMENTS-
Ordinary Shares-(Quoted) fully paid up
Titan Industries Ltd. ..
PSI Data Systems Ltd.
HDFC Bank Ltd. .
Industrial Develop
Voltas Ltd. .......cccooevvvvceiciiine
Tata Consultancy Services Ltd.

Ordinary Shares-(Unquoted) fully paid up
Tata Industries Ltd. ...
Rujuvalika Investment:
Tata BP Solar India Ltd.
Tata Ceramics Ltd.
Tata Sons Ltd. ....
India Natural Gas Co. Pvt. Ltd
Haldia Petrochemicals Ltd. ............ccccccoiiiiiinine

Carried over.. ..

part of the Balance Sheet

Quantity

Opening
Balance

9,08,700
21.78

87,56,054

15,500

40,91,300

1,75,99,774
20,000
40

15,000

1,10,99,630
16,15,65,693

1,57,05,300

AL A2

1,400

9,600

45,000
60,00,00,000
50,00,00,000
18,03,20,000

1,52,064
13,39,200
31,00,000

9,95,01,000
20,00,000
7,00,00,000

35,51,903
1,83,334
17,82,000
91,10,000
5,673
1,00,000
2,24,99,999

Deductions/
Additions  Cancellations

19,980! —

— 15,000 !!
15,0001 —

— 1,10,99,630 @
25,75,837 ! —
8,40,00,000 ! —
1,10,99,630 @ =

— 31,00,000!!
11,46,99,000 ! —

— 7,00,00,0001!!
40,09,120 1 —
1,80,00,000'! —

Closing
Balance

9,08,700
21.78

87,56,054

15,500
19,980

40,91,300

1,75,99,774
20,000
40

15,000

16,15,65,693
25,75,837
1,57,05,300

1,112

1,400

9,600

45,000
68,40,00,000
50,00,00,000
18,03,20,000

1,10,99,630

1,562,064
13,39,200

21,42,00,000
20,00,000

40,09,120

1,80,00,000

35,51,903
1,83,334
17,82,000
91,10,000
5,673
1,00,000
2,24,99,999

Face Value
Rupees
Crores

9.09
21.78

87.56

15.50
19.98

40.91

176.00
10.00
40.00

15.00

161.57
2.58
15.71

0.11
0.13
0.10
0.45
684.00
500.00
180.32

11.10

152
13.39

214.20
2.00

4.01

18.00

0.35
0.14
*

0.14
0.02

35.52
0.18
17.82
##1.82
0.57
1.00
22.50

Cost as at
Cost 31-3-2005
Rupees Rupees
Crores Crores
9.00 9.00
21.78 21.78
126.94 126.94
148.72 148.72
15.50 15.50
19.94 Nil
35.44 15.50
193.16 173.22
40.53 40.53
292.09 292.09
9.97 9.97
39.84 39.84
341.90 341.90
Nil 15.00
15.00 Nil
397.43 397.43
Nil 11.07
115.44 115.44
121.84 Nil
17.63 17.63
254.91 144.14
0.11 0.11
0.13 ** 0.13**
0.01 0.01
0.52 0.52
726.00 600.00
500.00 500.00
180.32 180.32
1,407.09 1,281.09
1,662.00 1,425.23
11.07 Nil
26.39 26.39
85.72 85.72
Nil 3.12
214.20 99.50
2.00 2.00
Nil 70.00
4.24 Nil
332,55 286.73
18.00 Nil
361.62 286.73
0.85 0.85
6.45 ** 6.45**
* *
1.14 1.14
0.25 0.25
* *
8.69 8.69
40.09 40.09
0.30 0.30
24.49 24.49
9.11 *x 9.11%*
136.69 136.69
1.00 ** 1.00%*
22.50 22.50
234.18 234.18
2,857.08 2,525.48



Schedule forming part of the Balance Sheet

SCHEDULE “F” : INVESTMENTS (Contd.)

Brought forward. .

C. Preference Shares-(Unquoted) fully paid up
Inshaallah Investments Pvt. Ltd. ..........ccccooerennnne
Rallis India Ltd. ........ccooooviiiiiiiiiiiiiccccee

D. Other Securities-(Quoted)
6.75% Unit Trust of India - Tax free
US 64 Bonds 2008
Unit Trust of India - US2002 .
5.20% EXIM BONDS G11 SERIES(2003-04) .

E. Other Securities-(Unquoted)
5.50% NABARD Capital Gain Bonds (2011) ........
5.20% NABARD Capital Gain Bonds (2011) .
J M Equity Fund-Units
BOI Mutual Fund ........
Templeton India Growth Fund .
Birla Cash Plus Institutional Premium Plan
Birla Cash Plus Dividend Option Plan
JM High Liquidity Fund Institutional Plan-Growth
JM High Liquidity Fund Institutional Plan-Dividend
Grindlays Cash Fund Plan C - Institutional Plan -
Growth ..o
Grindlays Cash Fund Plan C - Institutional Plan-
Dividend .
SBI Mutual Fund - Savings Plan -
Dividend Reinvestment ..
HDFC Liquid Fund
HDFC Cash Management Fund - Growth ....
HDFC Cash Management Fund - Dividend
HSBC Cash Fund ..................
HSBC Cash Fund- Dividend ..
Templeton India Treasury Management .
Prudential ICICI Liquid Plan .............
SBI Magnum Institutional Cash Fund .
SBI Mutual Fund - Income Fund .
DSP Merill Lynch Liquidity Fund ..
Tata Liquid Fund High Investment Plan ..

HOHHHH

H*

*

H R H R

**  Provision for diminution in value of Investments

Notes :

@

1
##

Aggregate of Quoted Investments-

COST ittt
Market Value [including face value Rs. 381.35
crores - (31st March, 2005 - Rs. 125 crores)

in respect of items listed but not quoted] ................

Aggregate of Unquoted Investments-
Cost ...

During the year, the Company acquired and sold the
following Investments :

SBI Magnum Institutional Income Fund - Growth ...
SBI Magnum Institutional Income Fund - Dividend ..
HDFC Liquid Fund - Premium Plus Plan - Growth .....
HSBC Mutual Fund - Institutional Plan - Growth ......
Prudential ICICI - Institutional Plus - Growth ..
Prudential ICICI - Institutional Plus - Dividend ..........
Templeton India Treasury Management Account .....

Current Investments - all other investments are
long term investments.

Acquired during the year.

Sold/redeemed during the year.

Consequent to restructuring of share capital.
Consequent to becoming a Subsidiary.

Quantity

Opening
Balance

2,00,000
50,00,000

31,12,268
1,50,820
3.22

5,00,000
6,66,667
2,50,000
9,56,48,961

8,67,89,249

9,49,85,078

1,98,61,326
7,58,80,035
5,25,55,028
5,95,08,911
5,42,984
5,71,69,961
41,33,025
29,90,282
6,09,06,989
8,89,738

Deductions/
Additions  Cancellations

= 2,00,000 !
1,31,330 ! =
1,24,540 ! =
6,21,31,379! 9,47,91,519 1!
3,87,11,144! 1,73,66,136 !!
83,30,221! 9,51,19,470 1!
15,27,96,959 ! 11,97,31,290 I!
11,87,96,488 ! 21,37,81,566 !!
100,31,74,523 ! 97,94,04,101 1!
= 1,98,61,326 !!
= 7,58,80,035 !!
4,42,29,912! 9,67,84,940 !
8,62,54,405! 7,31,45,049 1!
1,36,57,544 ! 7,31,66,455 !!
65,87,49,636 ! 62,79,44,394 1
= 5,42,984 !
= 5,71,69,961 Il
1,03,97,018 ! 1,45,30,043 !!
— 29,90,282 !
= 6,09,06,989 !!
3,91,8791! 5,70,900 !!

Closing
Balance

50,00,000

31,12,268
1,50,820
3.22

131,330
124,540
5,00,000
6,66,667
2,50,000
6,29,88,821
2,13,45,008

3,30,65,669

2,37,70,422

1,31,09,356
3,08,05,242

7,10,717

Face Value
Rupees
Crores

Cost as at
Cost 31-3-2005
Rupees Rupees
Crores Crores
2,857.08 2,525.48
Nil 2.00**
5.00 5.00
5.00 7.00
38.39 ** 38.39*x
0.11 ** 0.11**
3.22 3.22
41.72 41.72
131.09 Nil
124.37 Nil
0.50 0.50
0.50 0.50
0.25 0.25
66.43 99.86
21.39 Nil
Nil 90.35
33.12 Nil
Nil 98.93
23.77 Nil
Nil 30.01
Nil 99.10
Nil 71.98
13.94 Nil
Nil 66.05
30.82 Nil
Nil 89.44
Nil 92.47
Nil 6.13
Nil 3.05
Nil 98.50
86.26 107.67
532.44 954.79
822.03 1,246.38
3,436.24 3,528.99
(24.07) (26.07)
3,412.17 3,502.92
As at As at
31-3-2006 31-3-2005
Rupees Rupees
Crores Crores
856.54 734.70
1,284.68 972.97
2,579.70 2,794.29
No of units  Purchase Cost
Rupees
Crores
14,01,54,043 152.62
3,58,83,379 36.00
11,61,10,705 154.34
13,93,32,979 145.75
8,83,79,632 146.44
20,48,68,582 242.80
12,91,248 134.25
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SCHEDULE “G” : CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS AND ADVANCES

CURRENT ASSETS-

(@) Inventories -
Stores and Spare Parts at or below COSt ...........ccvveviiiiiiieiicieeceen
Loose Tools at or below cost ............ccccevrvinnne.
Stores, Tools and Equipment in transit at cost ..
WWOTK-IN=-PIOGIESS ....viiieiiiiieiiieit ettt

(b)  Sundry Debtors -
(i)  Debts outstanding for more than six months ...........cccccevveiiiiiiiniennne
(i) Other debES....c.oiiiiiiei e

Less: Provision for Doubtful Debts............ccccevevieeiiii i,

Notes -

Sundry Debtors fully SECUIed .........ccccuviiiriiiiiiiiccce e
Sundry Debtors unsecured and considered good .
Sundry Debtors considered doubtful .............cccociiiiiiiiiiiiiiii,

# includes Rs. 81.15 crores, which, in accordance with the terms of
the contracts were not due for payments as at 31st March, 2006.

(c) Cash and Bank Balances-
(i)  Cash and Cheques on Hand (includes cheques on hand Rs.Nil -
31st March, 2005 - RS. 10.53 CTOTES) ......ccveiuveriirieiiieeiesie e
i)  Current Accounts with Scheduled Banks
i) Term Deposits with Scheduled Banks ...............ccooveeiiiiinicniiiicice
v) Term Deposits with Standard Chartered Bank, London - Non-
Scheduled Bank (maximum amount outstanding during the year
Rs. 437.21crores - 31st March, 2005 - Rs. 437.21 Crores)..........c.coccu....
(v)  Margin money deposit with a Scheduled Bank (against a Bank
GUAINANTEER). ittt ettt ettt ettt e e e ane e e

@  Includes Rs. 885.10 crores (31st March, 2005 - Rs. 421.14 crores)
in foreign currency.
! In foreign currency

(d) Other Current Assets -
Interest accrued oN INVESEMENTS .......c.vvieiee i

LOANS AND ADVANCES-Considered good- unless otherwise stated -

(Unsecured)
(@) Advances with public bodies (including balances with Customs and Excise
Rs. 0.11 crores - 31st March, 2005 - RS. 4.67 CrOI€S) ........ccccverueereereereeninens
(b) VAT Receivable (Inputs) (Net) ......cccceevrreeiireeniieeninen.
(c) Deposits with Af-Taab Investment Co. Ltd. (a Subsidiary Company) (including
interest accrued Rs. 0.84 crores - 31st March, 2005 - Rs. 1.73 crores)...........
(d) Deposits with NELCO Ltd. (a Subsidiary Company with effect from
31st December, 2005) .....ccoiiiiiiiiiiiii et
(e)  Advances with Subsidiaries :

Advances with Alaknanda Hydro Power Co. Ltd. .......ccccooiieiiiiiiiiieiiieiee
Advances with Tata Power Broadband Co. Ltd. ...
Advances with Maithon Power Ltd ..................
Advances with Tata Power Trading Co. Ltd. ..

(f)  Deposits with other Companies (including deposits considered doubtful
Rs. 1.27 crores - 31st March, 2005 - RS. 1.27 CrOI€S) ......cccueruverueeieerieerieeninens
Less: Provision for doubtful deposits..........ccveiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieece e

(g) Other Advances (including amount due from Directors Rs. Nil - 31st March,
2005 - Rs. 0.17 crore - maximum amount due during the year Rs. 0.17 crore -
31st March, 2005 - Rs. 0.18 crore) (including advances considered doubtful
Rs. 12.94 crores - 31st March, 2005 - RS. 2.18 CrOres) .......ccceevveerieeriineenienens
Less: Provision for doubtful advances .............cccevieiiiiiiiiiiiciceceeee

(h)  Payment of Taxes (net of provisions and including Fringe Benefit Tax) ...........

Rupees
Crores

406.58
0.19
26.36

ONS)

268.84

824.70

1,093.54#

15 il

10.14
1,048.09
35.31

1,093.54

0.21
25.36
886.15@

*1

78.83

0.62
29.17

81.99
1.65
Nil

Nil
0.01
Nil

0.01

134.27
1.27

© 133.00

147.70

12.94

134.76

82.74

Rupees
Crores

442.26

1,058.23

990.55

18.06

"~ 2,509.10

463.94

As at
31-03-2005
Rupees
Crores

219.60
0.14
73.42
3.87
297.03

310.13
417.25
727.38

30.75

696.63

5.61
691.02
30.75
727.38

11.15
28.27
424.14@

437.21!

78.83
979.60

12.87
1,986.13

5.14
Nil

62.47
1.65

8.05
0.06

Nil
0.14

8.25

63.52
1.27

62.25

157.04
2.18

154.86
242.87

537.49

2,973.04

2,523.62
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SCHEDULE “H” : CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS
As at
31-03-2005
Rupees Rupees Rupees
Crores Crores Crores
CURRENT LIABILITIES -
(@) Consumers Benefit Account (@ includes Rs. 9.82 crores in respect of
previous year transferred during the year) ........cccccvvvveeeiiiee e 46.82 @ 21.94
(b)  Sundry Creditors (See NOte 9) ......ccveviiiiiiiiiiieiiiec e 548.86 534.12
() Advance and progress payments ...........cccccceeeernenn. 17.03 45.84
(d) Interest accrued but not due on Secured Loans ....... 28888 24.25
(e) Interest accrued but not due on Unsecured Loans 8.60 9.93
(f)  Investor Education and Protection Fund shall be credited by the following
amounts namely:- **
() Unpaid DIVIAENd .......oeeiiiieeeeiiie e 6.52 5.95
(i Unpaid Matured Debentures ... 0.24 0.24
(i) INterest....ccveevveeeeiiee e 0.10 0.17
(iv) Unpaid Matured Deposits .. 1.03 Nil
(@) Other Liabilities .........cccooeiiiiiiiienii e 38.29 23.25
(h)  Security Deposits from CONSUMETrS .......cccceevvvveernen. 22.68 22.49
(1) SUNAIY DEPOSIES ...ttt e 18.31 18.69
731.81 706.87
** includes amounts aggregating Rs.0.20 crore (31st March, 2005 - Rs. 0.20
crore) outstanding for more than seven years pending legal cases.
PROVISIONS -
(@) Provision fOr Wealth TaX ........c.ceuruereiiiieee e 0.72 0.63
(b)  Provision for Proposed Dividend .............cccccoevueninene 168.41 148.60
(c)  Provision for Additional Income-tax on Dividend 23.62 20.94
(d)  Provision for Gratuities ..........cccceercvvreerieeeennieeeninne. 68.58 65.00
(e) Provision for Pension Scheme ...........cccooiiiiiicinne 12.79 10.75
() Provision for Leave ENCAShMEeNT ........ccccuvveiiiiiieiiiiee e 32.95 28.96
(9)  Provision for Premium on redemption of Debentures (See Note 35). ....... 134.70 134.70
(h)  Provision for Premium on redemption of Foreign Currency Convertible
BONAS (SEE NOLE 35) ....iveiieiiiiee et ree e e e e a e e enraeeeans 141.16 138.40
(i)  Provision for Contingencies (See Note 35) ............ccoc...e. Nil 30.00
(1))  Provision for future foreseeable losses on contracts, etc. 3.77 Nil
(k)  Provision for Warranties (See NOte 35) ........ccooveiieiiiiiiniieiieeeeeee e 2.50 2.72
589.20 580.70
1,321.01 1,287.57
SCHEDULE “I” : MISCELLANEOUS EXPENDITURE (to the extent not written off)
Expenditure incurred Amount Written off
Till 31-3-2006 Till 31-3-2005 During the year Closing Balance Asat 31-3-2005
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees
Crores Crores Crores Crores Crores
INTANGIBLE ASSETS-
“The Bombay (Hydro-Electric) Licence, 1907” ............... 0.13 0.13 — Nil Nil
“The Andhra Valley (Hydro-Electric) Licence, 1919” ...... 0.05 0.05 — Nil Nil
"The Nila Mula Valley (Hydro-Electric) Licence, 1921” ... 0.08 0.08 — Nil Nil
“The Trombay Thermal Power Electric Licence, 1953” ... * * — * *
OTHER EXPENDITURE-
Expenses re: New Ordinary Shares...........ccccccoeevvrennennnn. 0.03 0.03 — Nil Nil
Expenses towards Rights Shares issued in 1993 ............ 3.66 2.09 0.17 1.40 1.57
Global Depository Shares (GDS) issue eXpenses ............ 11.12 6.34 0.53 4.25 4.78
Discount on issue of Debentures ...........cccevveiiiiieennnn. 0.53 0.53 — Nil Nil
Discount on issue of Euro Notes ...........cccceeeunee. 5.54 4.35 0.19 1.00 1.19
Merger expenses- Tata Hydro & Andhra Valley ... 61.93 61.93 — Nil Nil
Merger expenses - Jamshedpur Power Co. Ltd.............. 0.54 0.54 — Nil Nil
Preliminary EXPENSES ....ccueeeviiieeiiiiieeiiiee e 0.01 0.01 — Nil Nil
Voluntary Retirement Scheme Compensation ............... 26.81 4.82 8.93 13.06 19.95
110.43 80.90 9.82 19.71 27.49
Less: GDS issue expenses adjusted against Securities Premium 4.25 4.78
15.46 22.71
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Schedule forming part of the Profit and Loss Account

SCHEDULE “1” : INCOME FROM OTHER OPERATIONS AND OTHER INCOME

1. INCOME FROM OTHER OPERATIONS —

Rental of Land, Buildings, Plant and Equipment, etc. ........c.cccccveviinrrennns
Income in Respect of Services rendered ..........ccccoevcveeeriiieresiiieesieeens
Income from Broadband services and sale of dark fibre .............cc.ccceee.
Revenue from Contracts - Transmission EPC Business Unit .....................
Miscellaneous Revenue and Sundry Credits .........ccccvevvveeeviiieeeniiieesieee,

Profit on Sale/Retirement of Assets (Net) (@ includes Rs. 8.72 crores on
sale of land including development rights). .........ccccoceivieiiiiiiiiciien,

2. OTHER INCOME -

@)

Interest on Government and Other Securities, Loans, Advances, Deposits,
etc.(including Rs. 3.16 crores - Previous Year Rs. 2.60 crores on
Contingencies Reserve Investments and Rs. 7.65 crores on Deferred Tax
Liability Investments - Previous Year Rs. 7.93 crores)(including interest from
subsidiaries Rs. 5.64 crores - Previous Year Rs. 10.72 crores) (including
Income-tax deducted Rs. 5.53 crores - Previous Year Rs. 8.98 crores)

Interest on US 64 Tax Free Bonds from Unit Trust of India (including
Rs. 5.91 crores - Previous Year Rs. 5.91 crores on Contingencies Reserve
Investments and Rs. 11.88 crores on Deferred Tax Liability Investments -
Previous Year RS. 11.88 CrOreS) .......cccouvreeruieniieieisiesiieeieeie e

Income from Trade INVESTMENTS ........cuvviiiiiiiii e
Dividend from SUBSIAIArIES .........ccooeiiiiiiiiiieie e,

Income from Other Investments (including Income-tax deducted Rs. 0.04
crore - Previous Year RS. 0.04 Crore) .......cccoocveiiiieniieniiiesieecie e

Profit on Sale of Investments (Net) (including Rs. 129.97 crores - Previous
Year Rs. 175.69 crores in respect of Long Term Investments) (See Note 17)

Provision for Diminution in value of Investments written back (Net) .......
Profit on Sale of Power Plant at Wadi (See Note 16) ...........cccceevveriiennnnn.
Profit on Sale of Power Systems Division (See Note 15) .........ccccceeverennns

SUNANY RECEIPES ..vveeeeiiiie ettt e e a e nneee e e anneee s

Rupees

Crores

7.95
12.55
Nil
194.43

10.75

9.37@

89.94

19.89

19.31

1.22

20.81

149.39
2.00
Nil
22.43

0.62

Previous

Year

Rupees Rupees
Crores Crores

5.99
12.25
8.00
174.39

10.50

3.21
235.05 214.34

77.91

19.89
1.27

9.80

7.91

191.01

46.22

32.75

Nil

0.37

325.61 387.13

560.66 601.47
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Schedule forming part of the Profit and Loss Account
SCHEDULE “2” : GENERATION, DISTRIBUTION, ADMINISTRATION AND OTHER EXPENSES
Previous
Year
Rupees Rupees Rupees
Crores Crores Crores
1. PAYMENTS TO AND PROVISIONS FOR EMPLOYEES -
(a) Salaries, Wages and Bonus (excluding Rs. 0.20 crore on Repairs and
Maintenance - Previous Year Rs. 0.16 crore) (net of provision written back
Rs. Nil - Previous Year RS. 22.00 CrOES) .......ccuveerrieerieeieeiesieesieeiesinenieas 114.45 83.25
(b) Company's contribution to Provident FUNd ..........ccccoecvveiviiee e, 6.35 6.28
(€)  RetifiNg GratUities .......ccueieiiiieiieie et 9.54 24.54
(d)  Welfare EXPENSES ......cccuviiiiiiiieiiie ittt sttt 22.42 23.64
(e) Contribution to Superannuation FUNd ...........ccccoviieieiiiie e 8.91 9.10
(f) Leave Encashment Scheme 7.25 6.01
(g) Pension Scheme 4.76 2.58
173.68 155.40
2. OPERATION EXPENSES -
(a) Stores, Qil, etc. consumed (excluding Rs. 25.60 crores on Repairs and
Maintenance - Previous Year RS. 20.51 CrOres) ........ccceevvriivrisereiirainnnn 23.40 22.24
(b) Rental of Land, Buildings, Plant and Equipment, etc. (net of provision
written back Rs. Nil - Previous Year RS. 17.70 CrOres) ........cccocceervueervnenne 12.58 (9.53)
(c) Repairs and Maintenance-
(i)  To Buildings and Civil WOTKS ...........ccceivieiiiiiniciieeesee e 19.40 14.21
(i) To Machinery and Hydraulic WOrKS ...........ccccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiic e, 94.35 97.17
(iii)  To Furniture, VENICIES, BTC. ...vviiceiree e 2.23 2.16
115.98 113.54
(d) Rates and Taxes 20.98 21.20
(B)  INSUFANCE ..ot 15.98 16.67
(f)  Components consumed relating to manufacturing activities .................. 11.06 28.41
(g) Cost of materials and erection charges - Transmission EPC Business Unit 204.07 164.83
(h)  Other Operation EXPENSES .........cicviiiiiiiiiiiie e 41.37 27.73
(i)  Provision for future foreseeable losses on contracts ..........ccccceeevveeennneen. 3.27 Nil
() AGENCY COMMISSION ......eivieiiiiiaiie ittt 2.93 Nil
451.62 385.09
3. WHEELING CHARGES PAYABLE ......coiiiiiiiiiiiiiieee ettt 17.40 20.51
4.  ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES -
(B)  RENT e 1.04 0.64
(D) RAES AN TAXES .. .ooveiiiiiiiiie ittt 1.04 1.01
(C)  INSUFANCE ..ottt 0.28 3.37
(d) Other Administration EXPENSES . ......ccovviriiiiiiiiiiiiieiiie i 10.56 11.33
(E)  DIFECLOIS" FEES .. eiieiieeiiiieeeiieee et e et e e et e e e e e s e e e et e e e anaeeeeanneeas 0.09 0.11
(f)  Auditors' Fees (See Note 27)..... ...... 2.25 1.87
(9)  GovernmMENt AUIt FEES .....cciuuiieiieiie e e e Nil 0.01
(h)  Cost Of SErvices PrOCUIEA . .......ccovueeeeiiiieeeeiiieeeseiiee e e e e eeee e nnaee e 17.01 15.44
() MiSCEllaNEOUS EXPENSES. .. weeeiuvereeiiireeeiiieieeaiieeessrteeeesaeaeeesneeeeasnneeeesnees 28.50 49.08
(1) BAA DEDLS .. oo 6.75 0.02
(k)  Provision for Doubtful Debts and Advances (Net) ..........ccccevvevreneennennn. 15.44 2.22

82.96 85.10

725.66 646.10
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Schedules forming part of the Profit and Loss Account

SCHEDULE “2” : GENERATION, DISTRIBUTION, ADMINISTRATION AND OTHER EXPENSES (Contd.)

Brought Forward....

5. (INCREASE)/DECREASE IN WORK-IN-PROGRESS-
OPENING BAIANCE . ...ooiiiiiiiiiii e
Less - Transfer on sale of Power Systems DiviSion. ..........cccccevcvveeviiieeeanns
Less - Closing BalanCe ..........cccoviviiiiiiiiiciic

6. AMOUNT WRITTEN OFF - MISCELLANEOUS EXPENDITURE -
(Schedule ") ..
7.  TRANSFER OF REVENUE EXPENSES TO CAPITAL

SCHEDULE “3” : INTEREST AND FINANCE CHARGES

INTEREST :

(@) INTEREST ON DEBENTURE LOANS .....coiiiiiiiiiiiie ittt
(b) INTEREST ON FIXED PERIOD LOANS FROM INTERNATIONAL BANK FOR
RECONSTRUCTION AND DEVELOPMENT AND INTERNATIONAL FINANCE
CORPORATION ...ttt ettt
INTEREST ON FIXED PERIOD EURO NOTES & FCCB......coveviieieriierienienieirennns
OTHER INTEREST AND COMMITMENT CHARGES (including Rs. 7.64 crores
on Fixed Period Loans - Previous Year RS. 14.90 CrOres) .........ccceevverviveriunenne.

—_—
e

Less @ INTEREST CAPITALISED ......cccociiiiiiiiiiii i

FINANCE CHARGES :
(@)  LOSS ON EXCHANGE (NET) ...veeoveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseeeseeeeeeseeeeseeeeesse e
(b) COMMISSION AND BROKERAGE

() GUARANTEE FEES FOR LOANS............
(

(

= =

d) DELAYED PAYMENT CHARGES .......ocoiiiiiiieii e
€) OTHER FINANCE CHARGES ........ooiiiiiiii e

SCHEDULE “4” : STATUTORY APPROPRIATIONS

CONTINGENCIES RESERVE .....c.oeiiiiiiiiiieiie st
DEFERRED TAXATION LIABILITY FUND ....ooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeee e
TARIFFS AND DIVIDENDS CONTROL RESERVE (includes Rs. 9.82 crores in
reSPECt OF PreVIOUS YEAI) .......eoiuiiiiiiiiiieeii et

—_
oo
= =

—
)
-~

Previous

Year

Rupees Rupees Rupees
Crores Crores Crores
725.66 646.10

3.87 11.95
3.69 Nil
9.13 3.87
(8.95) 8.08

9.82 18.20

(5.38) (20.30)

_ 72115 _ 652.08

Previous

Year

Rupees Rupees Rupees
Crores Crores Crores
52.22 55.42
Nil 0.48
93.59 87.95
17.71 32.42
163.52 176.27
15.06 9.29
148.46 166.98

8.01 7.89
4.65 3.80
Nil 0.04
0.22 4.05
3.94 8.68
16.82 24.46

__165.28 _ 19144

Previous

Year

Rupees Rupees

Crores Crores

10.40 19.98

Nil (23.71)

24.89 Nil

35.29 (3.73)
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Schedule forming part of the Profit and Loss Account
SCHEDULE “5” : COMPUTATION OF NET PROFIT IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 309(5) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956 AND
COMMISSION PAYABLE TO THE WHOLE-TIME AND OTHER DIRECTORS
Previous
Year
Rupees Rupees Rupees
Crores Crores Crores
Profit before Taxes and Statutory Appropriations as per Profit and Loss Account. ... 747.45 758.79
Add - Managerial REMUNEIatioN ..........cccuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 1.80 2.74
Provision for diminution in value of Investments written back (Net).............. (2.00) (46.22)
Provision for Doubtful Debts and Advances (Net) .......cceevvvveeviieeeniiee e, 15.44 2.22
15.24 (41.26)
762.69 717.53
Less - Profit on Sale of INvestments (Net) ..........ccooiciiiiiieiiiee e 149.39 191.01
Profit on Sale of POWET Plant ...........cccvviiiiiiiiiiiiciccec e Nil 32.75
Profit on Sale of Power Systems Division 22.43 Nil
Profit on Sale of land including development rights.............cccoceiiiiiiiennns 8.72 Nil
180.54 223.76
Net Profit as per SECtion 309(5) ... uuueeiiuuireeiiiiee e siee e e e seee e e 582.15 493.77
Commission payable to :
(@) Whole-time Directors (inclusive of excess provision of Rs. 0.23 crore of
previous year written back) (Previous Year - Rs. 0.07 crore) ................... 0.56 0.85
(b) Non Whole-time Directors (inclusive of provision of Rs. 0.04 crore of
previous year written back) (Previous Year - Rs. Nil) restricted to ........... 0.64 0.50
1.20 1.35

Note :

The Company has been legally advised that commission payable to the
non Whole-time Directors in terms of Section 309 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 1956, does not require the
approval of the Central Government. The Company has, therefore, not
applied for such approval.

Signatures to Notes and Schedules “A” to “I”’ and “1” to “5”

Mumbai, 29th May, 2006.

B. J. SHROFF
Secretary

For and on behalf of the Board,

R. N. TATA
Chairman

S. RAMAKRISHNAN
Executive Director
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Schedule “J” - Notes forming part of the Accounts

1. Major Accounting Policies: -

@)

Fixed Assets :

All fixed assets are stated at cost less depreciation. Cost comprises the purchase price and any other applicable costs. For this

purpose cost also includes :

(i)  Borrowing costs attributable to the acquisition and construction of fixed assets upto the date the asset is ready for use
and

(i)  Exchange differences, in case of borrowed funds and liabilities in foreign currencies for the acquisition of fixed assets
from a country outside India.

Depreciation/Amortisation :

(i)  Depreciation for the year in respect of assets relating to the electricity business of the Company as Licensee has been
provided on straight line method in terms of the repealed Electricity (Supply) Act, 1948 on the basis of Central Government
Notification No. S. O. 265(E) dated 27th March, 1994, except that computers acquired on or after 1st April, 1998 are
depreciated at the rate of 33.40% p.a. on the basis of approval obtained from the State Government.

(i) Depreciation for the year in respect of assets relating to the electricity business of the Company as other than a
Licensee has been provided on straight line method in terms of the repealed Electricity (Supply) Act, 1948 on the basis
of Central Government Notification No. S. O. 266(E) dated 29th March, 1994.

(iii) In respect of assets relating to the other business of the Company, depreciation has been provided for on written down
value basis at the rates and in the manner prescribed in Schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 1956, except in the case
of technical know-how which is written off on a straight line basis over a period of six years.

iv) Assets costing less than Rs. 5,000/- are written off in the year of purchase.
v) Leasehold Land is amortised over the period of the lease.

(

(

(vi) Goodwill is amortised over a period of five years.

(vii) Depreciation on additions/deletions of assets is provided on pro-rata basis.
(

viii) Depreciation rates used for various classes of assets are :

Hydraulic Works - 1.95% to 3.40%
Buildings - 3.02% to 33.40%
Railway Sidings, Roads, Crossings, etc. - 3.02% to 5.00%
Plant and Machinery - 1.80% to 45.00%
Transmission Lines, Cable Network, etc. -3.02% to 13.91%
Furniture, Fixtures and Office Equipment -12.77% to 18.10%
Motor Vehicles, Launches, Barges, etc. - 25.89% to 33.40%
Helicopters - 33.40%

Depreciation so provided has been determined as being not less than the depreciation which would have been recognized in
the Profit and Loss Account had the rates and the manner prescribed under Schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 1956, been
applied.

Investments :

Long term investments are carried at cost less provision, if any, for permanent diminution in value of such investments.
Current investments are carried at lower of cost and fair value.

Inventories :

Inventories of stores and spare parts and loose tools are valued at or below cost. Cost is ascertained on weighted average
basis. Work-in-progress is valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes material costs, labour and
manufacturing overheads on the basis of absorption costing.

Taxes on Income :

Current tax is determined as the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year. Deferred tax is recognised,
on timing differences, being the difference between taxable income and accounting income that originate in one period and
are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods - (See Note 25). Where there is unabsorbed depreciation or carry
forward losses, deferred tax assets are recognised only if there is virtual certainty of realisation of such assets. Other deferred
tax assets are recognised only to the extent there is reasonable certainty of realisation in future.
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Research and Development Expenses :

Research and Development costs of a revenue nature are charged as an expense in the year in which these are incurred.
Premium on redemption of Debentures and Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCB):

Premium payable on redemption of FCCB and Debentures as per the terms of their respective issues is provided fully in the
year of issue by adjusting against the Securities Premium Account.

Warranty Expenses :

Anticipated product warranty costs for the period of warranty are provided for in the year of sale. Other warranty obligations
are accounted for as and when claims are admitted.

Foreign Exchange Transactions :

All monetary assets and monetary liabilities in foreign currencies are translated at the relevant rates of exchange prevailing
at the year end. In respect of foreign exchange contracts, the premium or discount arising at the inception of such a contract
is amortised as expense or income over the life of the contract. In case of monetary assets and monetary liabilities in foreign
currencies (other than those for acquisition of fixed assets from a country outside India) the exchange differences are recognised
in the Profit and Loss account.

Exchange differences in case of borrowed funds and liabilities in foreign currencies for the acquisition of fixed assets from a
country outside India are adjusted to the cost of fixed assets.

Retirement Benefits :

Provision for accruing liability for gratuity, pension and leave encashment on separation is made on the basis of the liability

as actuarially determined as at the year-end. There are no separate trust funds in respect of these liabilities. Contribution to

Provident Fund and Superannuation Fund are accounted on accrual basis with corresponding contributions to recognised

funds.

Revenue Recognition :

(i)  Revenue from Power Supply is accounted for on the basis of billings to consumers and is inclusive of Fuel Adjustment
Charges.

(i) Delayed payment charges and interest on delayed payments for power supply are recognised, on grounds of prudence,
as and when recovered.

Accounting for Contracts :

Income on contracts in respect of the Transmission EPC Business Unit and manufacture of electronic products are accounted

on "Percentage of completion” basis measured by the proportion that cost incurred upto the reporting date bear to the

estimated total cost of the contract.

Issue Expenses :

(i)  Expenses incurred in connection with issue of Rights Shares and Global Depository Shares are amortised over the
remaining period of the licence for supply of electricity, in accordance with the treatment adopted for the determination
of "Clear Profit” under the repealed Electricity (Supply) Act, 1948. However, the closing balance of the expenditure in
connection with Global Depository Shares carried forward under ‘Miscellaneous Expenditure (to the extent not written
off) " has been disclosed as an adjustment against Securities Premium Account.

(ii)  Expenses incurred in connection with the issue of Euro Notes, Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds and Debentures are
adjusted against Securities Premium Account.

(iiiy Discount on issue of Euro Notes are amortised over the tenure of the Notes.
Expenditure on Amalgamation :

The expenditure incurred is amortised over a period of five years.

Payments under Voluntary Retirement Schemes (VRS) :

Compensation paid under VRS is amortised over a period of thirty six months commencing from the month following the
month of separation.
Segment Reporting :
The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the accounting policy of the Company. Revenue and
expenses have been identified to segments on the basis of their relationship to the operating activities of the segment.

Revenue and expenses, which relate to the enterprise as a whole and are not allocable to segments on a reasonable basis,
have been included under "Unallocated income/expenses".
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During the previous year the Company issued 1% Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCB) aggregating to U.S. $ 200 million
(Rs.878.80 crores at issue). The bondholders have an option to convert these Bonds into shares, at an initial conversion price of
Rs.590.85 per share at a fixed rate of exchange on conversion of Rs.43.38 = U.S. $ 1.00, at any time on or after 6th April, 2005,
upto 15th February, 2010. The conversion price is subject to adjustment in certain circumstances. The FCCB may be redeemed, in
whole but not in part, at the option of the Company at any time on or after 24th February, 2008 and prior to 15th February, 2010
subject to satisfaction of certain conditions. Unless previously converted, redeemed or repurchased and cancelled, the FCCB fall
due for redemption on 25th February, 2010 at 115.734 percent of their principal amount.

Net proceeds received on issue of FCCB pending utilisation have been invested in short term deposits with banks. [items (c) (iii) and
(c) (iv) - Schedule "G"1.

Contingency Reserve Investments and Deferred Taxation Liability Fund Investments include 6.75% Unit Trust of India-Tax Free US
Bonds 2008 of face value of Rs. 87.56 crores and Rs. 176.00 crores respectively received on conversion of units in Scheme US-64
which are being carried at the cost at which the units were acquired viz. Rs. 126.94 crores and Rs. 292.09 crores respectively. No
provision has been made for diminution in the value of these investments as the loss on realisation of these investments, if any, will
be adjusted against the said reserves.

(@) Contingencies Reserve No.1 represents the transfer to such reserves in terms of Para IV of the Sixth Schedule to the repealed
Electricity (Supply) Act, 1948.

(b) Contingencies Reserve No.2 represents the transfer to such reserves in respect of the "Net surplus on cancellation of foreign
exchange forward cover contracts”, in accordance with the approval of the State Government.

The Company has been legally advised that the Company is considered to be established with the object of providing infrastructural
facilities and accordingly, Section 372A inserted by the Companies (Amendment) Act, 1999 effective 31st October, 1998 is not
applicable to the Company.

(@ (i) The Company has -
(@) an investment in Tata Teleservices Limited (TTSL) of Rs.726.00 crores (31st March, 2005 - Rs.600.00 crores);

(b) given guarantees to third parties on behalf of TTSL aggregating to Rs.56.50 crores (31st March, 2005 - Rs. 177.50
crores) and provided letters of awareness to banks and financial institutions in respect of facilities aggregating to
Rs.Nil (31st March, 2005 - Rs. 50.00 crores);

(c) issued a non - disposal undertaking on existing and future shareholding in TTSL in consideration of a grant of a
short term loan of Rs. Nil (31st March, 2005 - Rs.100.00 crores) by the institution to TTSL;

(d) pledged 34,88,40,000 shares held by it in TTSL in favour of IDBI Bank Limited, acting as security trustee on behalf
of secured lenders of TTSL and

(e) in terms of the shareholders agreement, an obligation to subscribe for or arrange along with the participants of
the Tata Group, for additional capital as per specified schedule.

(i)  TTSL has accumulated losses as at 31st March, 2005, based on latest audited accounts for March, 2005, which has
significantly eroded its net worth. In the opinion of the Management, having regard to the long gestation period
inevitable in the nature of its business, there is no permanent diminution in the value of the investment.

(b) The Company has an investment in the Equity Shares of Panatone Finvest Limited (PFL) of Rs.500.00 crores (31st March,
2005 - Rs. 500.00 crores) and has provided guarantees to PFL's bankers for an aggregate amount of Rs.500.00 crores (31st
March, 2005 - Rs. 500.00 crores).

(c) The Company has an investment in Tata Teleservices (Maharashtra) Limited (TTML) of Rs.115.44 crores (31st March, 2005 -
Rs. 115.44 crores) and has issued guarantees on behalf of TTML aggregating to Rs.50.00 crores (31st March, 2005 -
Rs. 50.00 crores) to TTML's bankers.

(d) The Company has provided Undertakings to certain Financial Institutions for non - disposal of its shareholding in North Delhi
Power Limited (NDPL) during the tenure of two loans taken by NDPL from certain Financial Institutions aggregating to
Rs.280.28 crores (31st March, 2005 - Rs. 280.28 crores). Further the Company has issued a guarantee on behalf of NDPL of
Rs.0.09 crore (31st March, 2005 - Rs.0.10 crore) to NDPL's banker's.

(e) The Company has -

(i)  an investment in Powerlinks Transmission Limited (PTL) of Rs.214.20 crores (31st March, 2005 - Rs. 99.50 crores).
(ii)  entered into a Sponsor Support Agreement with PTL and its Lenders under which it has agreed to provide or cause to

be provided to PTL from time to time a maximum amount of Rs.366.00 crores (31st March, 2005 - Rs.366.00 crores) in
the form of Loans or Equity contributions on the terms and conditions set forth in the agreement.
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(i) interms of the Deed of Pledge of Shares executed by the Company and Power Grid in favour of Infrastructure Development
Finance Company Limited (IDFC) acting as Security Trustee for the Lenders with PTL as a confirming party for pledging
the Company's current and future shareholding in PTL, Powers of Attorney is executed in favour of the Security Trustee
and the Lenders to accomplish the purpose of the Deed with full authority in terms of the Deed.

In connection with the sale of shares of Tata Honeywell Ltd. (THL), in the previous year the Company had issued a Deed of
Indemnity to Honeywell Asia Pacific Inc., upto Rs.0.74 crore (31st March, 2005 - Rs. 0.74 crore) from the potential direct tax
exposures in THL.

The Company has furnished a Corporate Indemnity of Rs. 315.30 crores (31st March, 2005 - Rs.315.30 crores) in favour of
ICICI Bank Limited for an amount equal to the liability of The Punjab National Bank under the Bank Guarantee issued by them
in connection with the dispute with Reliance Energy Limited on the sharing of standby charges (refer note 12).

During the year, a 100% subsidiary of the Company, Af-Taab Investment Company Limited has invested in the equity share
capital of NELCO Limited (NELCO). Consequently, NELCO has become a subsidiary of the Company. NELCO holds 83% of the
Share Capital of Tatanet Services Limited, as a result of which Tatanet Services Limited has become a subsidiary of the
Company. Further, the Company has given Letter of Comfort on behalf of NELCO to the bank for availing short term loans
of Rs.25.00 crores.

Capital commitments not provided for are estimated at Rs.101.00 crores (31st March, 2005 - Rs.156.01 crores).

@

(b)

Sundry Creditors [item (b) under ‘Current Liabilities'- Schedule "H"] include Rs.0.84 crore (31st March, 2005- Rs.0.08 crore)
due to small scale and ancillary undertakings.

Small scale and ancillary undertakings to whom amount is outstanding for more than 30 days are as follows :-
(i)  Boiler Controls Pvt. Ltd.

(i)  C S Diesel Engineering Pvt. Ltd.
(i) GEA Energy System (India) Ltd.
(iv) Meco Instruments Pvt. Ltd.

(v)  Mikroflo Filters Pvt. Ltd.

(vi) Modern Petro-Packagings

(vii) Nitin Fire Protection Industries Ltd.
(viii) Precimeasure Controls Pvt. Ltd.
(ix) Shaw Engineering Corporation

(x)  Yashmun Engineers Ltd.

The above information has been compiled in respect of parties to the extent to which they could be identified as small scale and
ancillary undertakings on the basis of information available with the Company.

Contingent Liabilities :

(@)

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts Rs.166.73 crores (31st March, 2005 - Rs.228.38 crores) consists
mainly of the following:

(i)  Octroi claims disputed by the Company aggregating to Rs.5.03 crores (31st March, 2005 - Rs. 5.03 crores), consisting
of Octroi exemption claimed by the Company regarding which the Writ has been admitted by the High Court.

(if) A Suit has been filed against the Company claiming compensation of Rs.20.51 crores (31st March, 2005 - Rs. 20.51
crores) by way of damages for alleged wrongful disconnection of power supply and interest accrued thereon Rs.81.85
crores (31st March, 2005 - Rs.77.53 crores).

(iii) Rates, Duty and Cess claims disputed by the Company aggregating to Rs.14.88 crores (31st March, 2005 - Rs.26.61
crores), consisting mainly for levy of cess and way leave fees by Maharashtra Pollution Control Board at higher rates
which is challenged by the Company.

(iv) Encashment of bank guarantee of Rs.Nil (31st March, 2005 - Rs.10.00 crores) by Mumbai Port Trust (MbPT) on account
of non-performance by the Company.

(v) Delayed Payment Charges on Standby Charges and interest on delayed payments payable to MSEB estimated at Rs.31.00
crores (31st March, 2005 - Rs.31.00 crores) (refer note 12).

(vi) Other claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts Rs.13.46 crores (31st March, 2005 - Rs. 57.70 crores).
(vii) Other employee matters - amount not ascertainable.
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(b)

Note:

(b)

In res

Taxation matters for which liability, relating to issues of deductibility and taxability, is disputed by the Company and provision
is not made (computed on the basis of assessments which have been re-opened and assessments remaining to be completed):

Rs. crores
As at
31st March,
2005
(i)  Matters on which there are decisions of the appellate authorities
in the Company's favour, not accepted by the tax authorities...... 29.67 33.96
(i) Interest and penalty demanded .........ccccoviiereiiiiee e 15.69 15.69

Under the Share Purchase Agreement entered into with Tata Industries Limited (TIL) in January 2001, the Company had agreed
payment of production upside in the event the total gas production is more than 1.2 Trillion Cubic Feet (TCF) to Tata Industries
Limited for net incremental production over and above 1.2 TCF. The said production is based upside for the Tata Petrodyne
Limited's (TPL) participating interest of 10% at the rate of US $0.23 per TCF. The obligation on the Company to pay TIL in case
of upside in production continues even after the sale of shares of TPL.

In July, 2003 Maharashtra Electricity Regulatory Commission (MERC) by its Order on reviewing the repealed Electricity Act, 1910,
repealed Electricity (Supply) Act, 1948 and the licenses of the Company had been unable to concur with the argument put forward
by Reliance Energy Limited (REL) that the Company cannot supply energy directly to any consumer. However, as stated in the
Order, MERC had as a temporary measure and till such time a level playing field was established, restrained the Company from
offering new connections and distributing power to consumers below 1000 KVA, but did not pass any Order in respect of RELs
claim that the Company should hand over the financial gains made by the Company to REL or the Government of Maharashtra.

By its Order dated 22nd May, 2006, the Appellate Tribunal has set aside the findings of MERC, against whose Order both the
Company and REL had preferred appeals, and has allowed as a whole the appeal preferred by REL. Further the Appellate Tribunal
has held that TPCL has not been granted license to undertake retail distribution of electricity in the area within which REL has been
distributing power in retail to customers directly and also concluded that till 1997, TPCL was never engaged in distribution of
power in retail and the conflict has arisen between the parties only after REL set up its own generating plant or soon thereafter.

The financial consequences of the Appellate Tribunal Order, has neither been quantified in the Order nor been ascertained by
the Company.

The Company is of a view, supported by independent legal opinion, that the Appellate Tribunal’s Order can be successfully
challenged, and consequently no provision/adjustment is considered necessary. The Company proposes to appeal to the
Supreme Court against this Order.

If any liability materialises in respect of items (a) and (b) above, the same would have to be considered for the purposes of
the computations of aggregate gain / loss under the MERC (Terms and Conditions of Tariff) Regulations, 2005, to the
extent it pertains to the licensed business.

(i)  Provision has been made in the accounts for supply of gas upto 29th January, 1987 by Oil and Natural Gas Commission
(ONGC) on the basis of their bills. The Company has been advised that the price at which the gas is billed is to be treated
as provisional. The Company has not accepted this position.

(i) Inrespect of gas supplied by ONGC from 30th January, 1987 to 15th May, 1992, transportation charges have been billed
on a provisional basis. The Company has also been advised that the excise duty and octroi, if levied, on the price of gas,
together with the sales tax on the excise duty, transportation charges and octroi would be recovered from the Company.

(iii)  Prices of Natural Gas from 1st April, 2000 is under review by the Ministry of Petroleum and Natural Gas (MOPNG).

(iv) In respect of gas purchased from ONGC and later from GAIL, claims aggregating to Rs.40.09 crores (31st March, 2005 -
Rs.40.09 crores) have been made on the Company towards shortfall in the off take of minimum guaranteed quantities of
gas during the period from 1st April, 1992 to 31st December, 2001 which claims have been contested by the Company.

(v) In respect of supply of fuel by Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Limited, the Company has not accepted claims for
quantities billed which are in excess of the Company's meter readings. The amount of such claims not provided for
aggregates Rs.3.74 crores (31st March, 2005 - Rs.3.74 crores).

If any amount is payable by the Company in respect of the items referred to in (a) above, the same would be recoverable as part

of fuel surcharge from the consumers. No provision has, therefore, been made in the accounts in respect of these items.

pect of the share of Standby Charges billed by Maharashtra State Electricity Board (MSEB) and recoverable from Reliance Energy

Ltd. (REL), the Company had in respect of the periods upto 31st March, 2004, taken credit in previous years for the amount

recov

erable in terms of the Common Order dated 3rd June, 2003 passed by Hon'ble Bombay High Court in Maharashtra Electricity

Regulatory Commission (MERC) Appeal No. 1 of 2002 and MERC Appeal No. 2 of 2002. This amount upto 31st March, 2004
aggregates to Rs. 1,019.00 crores. However, these amounts have been disputed by REL and only Rs. 895.55 crores has been paid by
REL to MSEB through the Company/MERC as per the orders passed by MERC and the High Court.
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MERC passed an order dated 31st May, 2004 whereby, an amount of Rs. 313.93 crores as on 31st March, 2004 was directed to be
refunded by the Company to REL together with interest @10% per annum commencing from 1st April, 2004 till the date of payment and
Rs. 225.39 crores as on October, 2003, was directed to be paid to MSEB towards interest and delayed payment charges. The Company had
filed a Writ Petition in the Hon'ble Bombay High Court against the said order dated 31st May, 2004 as the Appellate Tribunal under the
Electricity Act, 2003 was not constituted and/or functional. REL had also filed a Writ Petition in the Hon'ble Bombay High Court against the
said order dated 31st May, 2004. The Hon'ble Bombay High Court by an Order dated 1st July, 2004 stayed the order for refund to REL on
the condition that the Company furnishes a Bank Guarantee in favour of the Prothonotary and Senior Master, High Court, Bombay for the
sum of Rs. 315.30 crores, within 4 weeks. The Company has accordingly furnished such a Bank Guarantee on 23rd July, 2004. The
Guarantee has been renewed for a further period of one year. REL filed a petition in the Supreme Court for Special Leave to Appeal against
the said Order. The Hon'ble Supreme Court, had granted REL Leave to Appeal against the said Order dated 1st July, 2004.

Further, by the said Order dated 1st July, 2004, the Company was directed to pay a sum of Rs. 100.00 crores to MSEB within 4 weeks and
the balance in two equal installments on or before 31st October, 2004 and 31st January, 2005 respectively. The Company has accordingly
paid all the three installments to MSEB. The Hon'ble High Court however, did not stay or modify the payment of standby charges from 1st
June, 2004 onwards. The Company has accordingly been paying a sum of Rs. 33.00 crores every month, to MSEB towards standby charges.

By a Judgement dated 24th December, 2004, the Hon'ble High Court has disposed off the Writ Petition filed by the Company
directing that the matter be decided by the Appellate Tribunal to be constituted under the Electricity Act, 2003. The Hon'ble Court
has further directed that during the interregnum period, the parties shall pay the standby charges according to the said Order dated
1st July, 2004. Both, the Company and REL, had filed Petitions in the Hon'ble Supreme Court of India to appeal against the said Order
dated 24th December, 2004. Both were granted leave to appeal. The Supreme Court by its common Order dated 30th November,
2005 disposed off the Special Leave Petitions with directions to the Company to file an appeal before the Appellate Tribunal.
Accordingly the Company has filed an appeal dated 12th December, 2005.

Consequent to the Appellate Tribunal becoming functional, during the year, the Company has also filed an appeal before the
Appellate Tribunal against the MERC Tariff Order dated 11th June, 2004 to the limited extent of fixing the charges for the standby
facility being provided by the Company to REL or sharing by the Company and REL of the Standby Charges payable to MSEB. The
hearings have been concluded on 28th April, 2006 and the judgement is awaited.

Since the aforementioned payments are subject to the final outcome of the Appeals, no adjustment has been made for the reversal in
terms of the MERC Order dated 31st May, 2004 of standby charges credited in previous years estimated at Rs.503.00 crores for the
period from 1st April, 1998 to 31st March, 2004. Further, consequent to the MERC Order, interest estimated at Rs. 31.00 crores is
payable to MSEB which has also not been accounted for [refer note 10(a)(v)]. The aggregate of these amounts net of tax is estimated at
Rs.354.00 crores, which MERC in its Order has allowed to be adjusted, wholly by a withdrawal/set-off from certain Statutory Reserves
created by the Company under the repealed Electricity (Supply) Act, 1948 in earlier years. Adjustments if any, will be recorded by the
Company on the final outcome of the said Appeal. Accordingly, adjustment to the Deferred Tax Liability Fund and the Deferred Tax
Liability Account will also be made on the disposal of the said Appeal and no provision has been made in the accounts towards interest
that may be determined as payable to REL (on amounts determined as excess recovery in the MERC Tariff Order in respect of which
refund the Company has obtained a stay) for the year ended 31st March, 2006 in terms of the MERC Order. However, since 1st April,
2004, the Company, as a matter of prudence, has accounted standby charges on the basis determined by the MERC Order.

(i)  MERC vide its Tariff Order dated 11th June, 2004, had directed the Company to treat the investment in its Wind energy project
as outside the Mumbai Licensed Area, consider a normative Debt Equity ratio of 70:30 to fund the Company's fresh capital
investments effective 1st April, 2003 and had also allowed a normative interest charge @ 10% p.a. on the said normative debt.
The change to the Clear Profit and Reasonable Return (consequent to the change in the Capital Base) as a result of the above
mentioned directives for the period upto 31st March, 2004, has been adjusted by MERC from the Statutory Reserves along with
the disputed Standby Charges referred to in Note 12 above. Consequent